
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

October 07, 2019 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  October 07, 2019 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

October 07, 2019 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Call to Order 

ITEM  6:00 PM Closed Session - Economic Development and Personnel 

ITEM  7:00 PM Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Rev. Kevin Lighty - Samuel Chapel Missionary Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Broadband Update - Eastern Shore Communications 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application - Dave Parks 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  October 07, 2019 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Selection of Disaster Debris Removal & Monitoring Contractors - Dan Porter 

C. MOU Camden County Parks & Recreation and Camden County Schools - Ken Bowman 

D. Center for Active Adults Trip Policy - Ken Bowman 

E. Vehicle Use Policy - Ken Bowman 

F. Resolution 2019-10-01 Census Partnership - Ken Bowman 

G. Bank Account Closure - Ken Bowman 

H. Interim Finance Officer - Ken Bowman 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Community Advisory Committee - Reappointment 

B. ABC Board - Reappointments 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - September 9, 2019 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019 

C. Budget Amendment 

D. Tax Collection Report 

E. Refunds Over $100.00 

F. DMV Monthly Report 

G. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 - August 2019 

H. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 - September 2019 

I. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

J. Records Retention and Disposition Schedule 

K. Surplus Property Request - Human Resources 

L. Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20 

M. Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-08-02 

N. Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-10-01 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  October 07, 2019 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

C. ABC Funds Report for FY 2018-2019 

D. YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection FY 19-20 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Broadband Update - Eastern Shore Communications 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Ronald van Geijn of Eastern Shore Communications will give a Broadband update. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Old Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Ordinance 2019-09-01 - Rezoning Application 

 

Attachments: Staff Report (PDF) 

Supporting Documents (PDF) 

2019-09-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 

Map - Eric Wood

 (DOC) 

 

Summary: 

Public Hearing was held on September 9, 2019.  The Board of Commissioners voted to place on 

the October 7, 2019 agenda for consideration. 

 

Eric Wood met with planning staff on rezoning of his property (approx. 15.64 acres) he 

purchased located adjacent to 204 and 208 Country Club Road.  Mr. Wood purchased the 

property as an investment for him and his family with the initial desire to cut out two one acre 

lots, build two houses on septic systems as sewer is not available at this time, and keep 

remainder of land as farmland.   Current zoning of Rural Residential (RR) has a minimum lot 

size of two acres.         

 

5.A

Packet Pg. 6



 
Neighborhood meeting was held July 11, 2019 in the upstairs Courtroom of the Historic Camden 

County Courthouse. (comments included in attached staff report). 

 

Planning Board met on July 17, 2019 and after discussion with applicant, staff and input from 

adjacent owner Planning Board made the following motions: 

 

- Consistency Statement:  Motion made the requested zoning is consistent with the 

objective of the Comprehensive Plan as it encourages higher density development within 

the Core Village boundaries. 

 

Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan - Vision Statement 

 

“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into established 

county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and public resources. 

New housing choices will be made available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. 

Rural areas will maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve agricultural and 

forestry production and low density residential development.” 

 

Motion passed:  5-0 Vote. 

  

- Motion made to recommended approval of rezoning the 15.64 acre tract from Rural 

Residential (RR) to Village Residential (VR) as recommended by staff.   

  

Motion passed:  5-0 vote. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve Ordinance 2019-09-01/Rezoning Application to rezone property from Rural 

Residential (RR) to Village Residential (VR). 

 

If recommendation is for approval the following two motions are needed. 

 

1. Consistency Statement:  The requested zoning is consistent with the objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan as it encourages higher density development within the Core Village 

boundaries. 

 

Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan - Vision Statement 

 

“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into established 

county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and public resources. 

New housing choices will be made available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. 

Rural areas will maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve agricultural and 

forestry production and low density residential development.” 

 

5.A

Packet Pg. 7



 
2.  Approve Ordinance 2019-09-01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-06-23) to rezone 

property from Rural Residential (RR) to Village Residential (VR). 

5.A

Packet Pg. 8



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

38
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



 

Ordinance No. 2019-09-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 

1993, and subsequently amended. 

  

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map  
 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and subsequently amended, is hereby amended as follows: 

 

The property currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor’s Office as 

PIN 02-8934-04-52-4826 is hereby re-zoned from Rural Residential (RR) to   

Village Residential (VR).   

 

Article III. Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its  

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established 

in connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, 

shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) 

dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to  

comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and 

safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use 

or Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of 

one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues.  If the offender 

fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the 

penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt.  A 

civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was 

sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take 

an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

 

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 E
ri

c 
W

o
o

d
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that  

such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the 

penalties and remedies specified in this section. 

 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be  

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

            

 

Article IV. Severability 
 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language 

held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

 

Article V. Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 9th day of 

September, 2019. 

 

 

      County of Camden 

    

      _____________________________ 

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners       

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 E
ri

c 
W

o
o

d
  (

25
38

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

- 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   August Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190927100643842.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:  August Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 43



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

92
71

00
64

38
42

.p
d

f 
 (

25
27

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

92
71

00
64

38
42

.p
d

f 
 (

25
27

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

92
71

00
64

38
42

.p
d

f 
 (

25
27

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

92
71

00
64

38
42

.p
d

f 
 (

25
27

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

92
71

00
64

38
42

.p
d

f 
 (

25
27

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

92
71

00
64

38
42

.p
d

f 
 (

25
27

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

92
71

00
64

38
42

.p
d

f 
 (

25
27

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Selection of Disaster Debris Removal & Monitoring 

Contractors 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Disaster Debris 2019 (002)

 (DOC) 

Final Bid Tabulation (PDF) 

Final Monitoring Bid Tabulation (PDF) 

 

Summary, recommendation and supporting documents attached. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 51



 

            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   October 7, 2019 

Attachments:   Three (4) attachments  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:    Selection of Disaster Debris Removal & Monitoring 

                                Contractors 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
The County’s existing contract for services expired and a Request for Proposals for both 

Disaster Debris Removal Contractors and Disaster Debris Monitoring Contractors was 

advertised and distributed to potential contractors.  . 

 

Camden County separately and concurrently solicited proposals to establish a pre-need, 

pre-event contract for a Debris Management firm for debris removal and a Debris 

Monitoring firm to be used during catastrophic events which have generated massive 

volumes of debris.  Camden County received eight responses to their Debris Management 

RFP and five responses to their Debris Monitoring RFP.  Each jurisdiction separately 

evaluated the proposals and then met as a group on Wednesday, September 4th to review 

them as a group.  Each jurisdiction was in agreement with the selection of Phillips and 

Jordan for the Debris Management firm and Tetra Tech for the Debris Monitoring firm.  

Both of these firms are the companies we had contracted with for the last four years, and 

while we have been fortunate enough to never have to utilize their services for debris 

removal they have fulfilled their contract in regards to training and establishing contact 

prior to every storm. 

 

 Recommendation:    

 

Motion to approve awarding: 

 Disaster Debris Removal contract to Phillips& Jordan  

 Disaster Debris Monitoring contract to Tetra Tech. 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

D
is

as
te

r 
D

eb
ri

s 
20

19
 (

00
2)

  (
25

17
 :

 S
el

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

D
is

as
te

r 
D

eb
ri

s 
R

em
o

va
l &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 C
o

n
tr

ac
to

rs
)



6.B.b

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 B
id

 T
ab

u
la

ti
o

n
  (

25
17

 :
 S

el
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

is
as

te
r 

D
eb

ri
s 

R
em

o
va

l &
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
rs

)



6.B.c

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 B
id

 T
ab

u
la

ti
o

n
  (

25
17

 :
 S

el
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

is
as

te
r 

D
eb

ri
s 

R
em

o
va

l &
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
rs

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   MOU Camden County Parks & Recreation and Camden 

County Schools 

 

Attachments: MOU2019 Camden County Parks and Recreation and 

Camden County Schools

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Revised Memorandum of Understanding between Parks & Recreation Department and Camden 

County Schools. 

Recommendation: 

Review and approve. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 55



 

1 
 

Camden County Parks and Recreation and Camden County Schools 

Memorandum of Understanding 

 

1. Purpose 

This document embodies the policies and procedures which govern facility use and users in order to 
ensure optimal maintenance of athletic fields and other recreational facilities owned by Camden County 
and by the Camden County Board of Education (BOE) and assure fair and efficient access to those 
facilities. 

The primary use of county recreation areas and facilities is for public recreation activities. The primary 
uses of school recreational facilities are: (a) during school hours for school use exclusively (generally 
8:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.), on days school is in session and (b) during non-school hours, and on non-school 
days, for school and community use. 

The following factors will be considered in determining permission for use of a facility: current capital 
improvements and/or rehabilitation of facility, scheduled regular maintenance of the facility, anticipated 
extent of wear and tear caused by use, coordination of scheduled uses, and availability of requested 
services at the facility. 

All parties must comply with Federal and State anti-discrimination laws. Additionally, all facility users 
shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws. The user shall pay all the costs, expenses, 
fines, penalties, and damages which may be imposed upon the owner of the property by reason of, or 
arising out of, the user’s failure to fully and promptly comply with all legal requirements and all the 
provisions of this policy.  

2. List of Facilities Governed 

The outdoor athletic fields and outdoor and indoor facilities within Camden County are legally controlled 
as follows: 

A. Board of Education Athletic Fields and Recreational Facilities 

School      Field/Facility 

Grandy Primary/Camden Intermediate  Gymnasium 

Camden County Middle School   Baseball Field  
      Football/Soccer Field 
      Gymnasium 
      Softball Field 
 
Camden County High School   Baseball Field 
      Football Field 
      Gymnasium 
      Softball Field (Central Office Complex) 
 
 
 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

20
19

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
ls

  (
25

16
 :

 M
O

U
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n



 

2 
 

 
B. Camden County Recreation Areas 

 
Locations      Field/Facility 
Camden Community Park    Baseball/Softball Field 1 
       Baseball/Softball Field 2    
       Baseball/Softball Field 3 

Baseball/Softball Field 4 
Baseball/Softball Field 5 

       Baseball/Softball Field 6 
       Baseball/Softball Field 7 
       Basketball Court (outdoor) 
       Football/Soccer (existing) 
       Football/Soccer (expansion) 
       Pavilion 
       Open Space 
       Tennis Court 
       Track and Field 
       Walking Trail 
 
Great Dismal Swamp Visitors’ Center   Walking/Biking Trail 
 

3. Priority Use by Category 
 

Permits for filed/facility use are issued by category in which the organization or event is placed. 
Category I user/event has priority over Category II and lower user/event. Within a category; Subcategory 
A has priority over B, B over C, etc. If there is a dispute within a category, the facility representative 
(Principal and/or Athletic Director, Parks and Recreation Director) shall make the final decision. 
 
 Category I Permit Use: 
 
BOE Public School activities for grades Pre-K – 12. These activities include physical education and 
academic activities and Camden County Schools’ extra-curricular and co-curricular programs. 
 
 Category II Permit Use—Based on APPROVAL and the completion of a Facilities Use Form: 
 

a. Parks and Recreation Directly Sponsored Activities. These activities include programs run by the 
Recreation Department such as day camps, after school programs, program offerings and special 
events. 

b. Recognized sports organizations comprised of 100 percent Camden County participants. 
c. Recognized sports organizations comprised of highest number of Camden County participants.  
d. The recognized sports organizations are the following volunteer sports organizations approved 

by the Camden County Parks and Recreation Department (according to the rules noted in Item 
e. below): 

i. Camden Youth League 
ii. Camden C.A.R.E. 

iii. Camden Youth Football and Cheering 
 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

20
19

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
ls

  (
25

16
 :

 M
O

U
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n



 

3 
 

e. A written roster, copy of the Registration Form, and proof of insurance (Section 4 (a) below) 
must be submitted annually at the time of application to the issuing entity. No permits will be 
issued unless this criterion is met.  
 
Category III Permits—Based on APPROVAL and the completion of a Facilities Use Form: 
 

a. Camden County Service Agencies/Community Partners—These groups include Camden 4-H, Boy 
Scouts and Girl Scouts, Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC). 

b. Other volunteer sports organizations requesting use of field space and/or facilities. Such                
volunteer sports organizations must also provide to the Camden County Parks and Recreation 
Department (AND the Camden County Board of Education when requesting use of school fields 
and/or facilities), written rosters, copies of registration forms, and proof of insurance as 
required in Section 4 (a). 
 
Category IV Permits—Based on APPROVAL and the completion of a Facilities Use Form: 
 

      a.   Private Group Field/Facility Requests—These groups are made up of citizens of Camden County   
or businesses based in Camden County, who request the use of facilities on an occasional basis 
when space is available.  

b.  Privately Operated Programs—Camden County Parks and Recreation Department and Board of 
Education facilities will not be made available for organization, entities, individuals, or groups 
for the purpose of providing recreational services to youth and/or adults if the event is to be 
operated on a for-profit basis.  

NOTE: All Category II through IV permits will stipulate that a program carried on by a 
Category I organization can claim priority use of fields/facilities in unusual 
circumstances.   Additionally, the Parks and Recreation Department and Camden County 
Board of Education reserve the right to request written copies of all team rosters, and 
registration forms complete with names, addresses, places of employment and 
insurance requirements. 

 
4.     Allocation of Fields and Facilities 

 
a. Supervision—The Camden County High School Athletic Director, Camden Middle School Athletic   

Director, Principals and the Parks and Recreation Director will collaborate, coordinate and 
schedule the allocation of the fields and facilities for Category I and II uses. The primary 
responsibility of Camden County Schools’ Athletic Directors will be to oversee the athletic 
facilities of the schools and coordinate the allocation of such with their respective principals and 
the Camden County Parks and Recreation Director. The primary responsibility of the County’s 
Parks and Recreation Director will be to oversee the County’s park facilities and will coordinate 
with the School District’s Athletic Directors and Principals. All applicable user groups will receive 
a copy of the Facilities Use Application and fee schedule. A copy will be posted on both the Parks 
and Recreation Department website and the Camden County Schools website. A hard copy will 
be made available to any resident who requests one from the Parks and Recreation Department 
and/or at the school where the request is being made. It is recognized that each group may 
further subdivide the time among its entities. Conflicts among such teams and groups are not 
being addressed by this document. 

b. Game Delays—Camden County Schools and Camden youth sports activities are often subject to 
delays due to late arriving opponents and/or officials and other emergencies. In such cases, use 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

20
19

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
ls

  (
25

16
 :

 M
O

U
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n



 

4 
 

may extend beyond the normal time. Likewise, overtime and extra innings can require 
additional time. Other users take their starting time subject to Camden County High School and 
Camden Middle School sports’ rights to complete their games and practices.  

c. Makeup Schedule—Under unusual circumstances, Camden county Schools sports, including 
makeup games, have the right to bump a previously scheduled activity. Every effort should be 
made to limit such late rescheduling. Other school district uses (for example, elementary school 
fairs, campouts, intramurals, etc.) are known well in advance and have priority as long as at least 
thirty (30) days notice is given of the event. The Parks and Recreation Director and Athletic 
Directors will make every effort to notify affected users of all cancellations as soon as possible. 

 
5. Field Modification 

 
a. Modifications are prohibited unless expressly authorized in writing by the owner. Any 

substantial proposed changes to fields or parks should be submitted to the School District’s 
Athletic Directors, Principals, and the Parks and Recreation Director to consider the impact upon 
the facilities use. Those requested changes, along with a recommendation, will then be 
forwarded to the Board of Education or the Board of Commissioners for consideration. 

b. This would include the development of active recreation areas from property not currently used 
for this purpose. It would include, but not limited to, the installation of fences, structures, 
scoreboards, permanent stands and permanent lighting.  

c. It would not include the replacement of any current structure with a new one of roughly the 
same size (an old backstop with a new one) or the replacement of existing fencing. These types 
of items will be the responsibility of the Parks and Recreation Director, Athletic Directors, or 
other designee.  

d. The placement location of all moveable items (portable stands, port-a-johns, soccer goals, 
batting cages, blocking sleds, temporary fencing, etc.) will be the responsibility of the Parks and 
Recreation Director, Athletic Directors, or other designees. They may delegate seasonal 
authority to co-sponsored organizations regarding the management of those items. 

 
6. Facility Rules and Regulations 

 
a. Use of any active recreation area by a group of more than ten (10) participants is authorized by 

permit only. 
b. Users must have a copy of the permit with them at all times while on the field or at the facility. 
c. User groups may not give their permitted time to another user group. User groups may 

subdivide time allotments among its entities (see Allocation of Fields and Facilities Item A.) For 
example, a Camden County Community Partner cannot give the use of their allotted time to a 
privately operated program without the knowledge of the Camden County Parks and Recreation 
Director. All changes must be made through the Parks and Recreation Director, Athletic 
Directors, or other designees.  

d. Use of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances of any kind, use of profane, loud, 
threatening, insulting, indecent, and abusive language is prohibited. Users and attendees may 
be subject to permanent expulsion from facilities and/or law enforcement intervention. 

e. Any user who abuses the fields and/or facilities shall have the privilege revoked, pay for any 
damages and/or fees incurred, and may have future requests denied. The fields and facilities will 
be carefully monitored for proper usage.  

f. The Parks and Recreation Director, Athletic Directors, and School Administrators reserve the 
right to cancel or restrict the use of fields and facilities by any user group should it be 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

20
19

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
ls

  (
25

16
 :

 M
O

U
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n



 

5 
 

determined it is in the best interest of the County, School District, citizens of the County, and/or 
our fields and facilities. 

g. Use of amplifiers for music, announcements or otherwise is not permitted to be unreasonably 
loud. The limit to such volume must be so that it is barely audible thirty (30) yards from the 
limits of the playing area. No amplifier use is permitted before 8:00 am.  

h. Athletic fields/facilities may not be used before 8:00 am or after dusk, except when lights are 
utilized. Category I and Category II practices and games for Camden County Schools and Camden 
Parks and Recreation should be scheduled to end by 10:00 pm with the lights to be turned off as 
soon as clean up and pick up of participants allow. 

i. Use of portable lighting by any group shall require an on-site meeting at the beginning of every 
season to determine the placement of the portable lights. Those locations shall be recorded by 
the Parks and Recreation Director and the user group. It will be the user group’s responsibility to 
ensure the lights are maintained in the correct locations. Every effort shall be made that the 
lights used will only light the playing surface and not exceed the field area.  

j. All Trash must be placed in proper receptacles. Users are expected to leave the facility in the 
same condition or better in which it was found. 

k. Only temporary signs or banners may be posted during events and must be removed at the 
conclusion of the use of the facility. 

l. No one shall drive a motorized vehicle of any kind onto recreational fields. 
m. Parking is allowed in designated areas only. It is the responsibility of the user group to enforce 

all parking regulations and to make sure vehicles are parked properly. 
n. No concession privileges will be extended by virtue of the use of the facility. Concession 

privileges must have the approval of the Parks and Recreation Director and/or Athletic 
Directors. 

o. There will be no open fires on Camden County or Camden County Board of Education property. 
p. Warm-ups for the next scheduled event must be performed so as not to interfere with existing 

events and so as not to endanger the welfare of all participants, spectators and facilities. 
q. All managers, coaches, or persons in charge of a group using the fields will be responsible for the 

conduct of all participants, spectators, and others connected with the activity, including visiting 
teams and opponents. It is the responsibility of the user group to inform all parents, spectators, 
and coaches of the field/facility rules. 

r. In the event of problems with the equipment or facilities, the Parks and Recreation Director 
and/or Athletic Directors or designees must be contacted immediately. 

s. No public urination or defecation. Any user group that desires a port-a-john at a site must gain 
approval from the Parts and Recreation Director and/or Athletic Directors. The Directors will be 
responsible for the site location and screening of the facility, if appropriate. 

t. Clothes must be changes in the rest rooms and/or locker rooms only. 
u. No first aid or medical supplies are available at the fields. These items must be provided by the 

user groups. The users must have communication for emergency situations and/or law 
enforcement.  

v. No animals except those which are trained to assist the disabled will be allowed on or inside 
Camden County Parks and Recreational property and/or Camden Board of Education property. 

 

 
 
 
 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

20
19

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
ls

  (
25

16
 :

 M
O

U
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n



 

6 
 

Memorandum of Understanding  
Camden County Parks and Recreation and Camden County Schools 
Addendum—July 1, 2019 
 
 
Procedure and Criteria for Parks and Recreation Recognized Status 
 

1. A county organization, whose primary function is to provide recreational activities within the 
community, may seek to obtain recognized status with the Camden County Parks and 
Recreation Department and where applicable Camden County Board of Education by 
satisfactorily fulfilling the following requirements: 

 
a. A demonstrated need for providing the activity is evidenced and facility capacity/field space 

exists to meet that need. 
b. Activity is provided strictly on a non-profit basis. In support of such, each organization shall 

provide written documentation in the form of either a Determination Letter issued by the 
Internal Revenue Service and a copy of its non-profit corporation Articles of Incorporation 
filed with the Corporations Division of the Secretary of State’s Office. 

c. All participants must reside in Camden County, Currituck County or Pasquotank County. 
d. All participants, including instructors, coaches, officials and players are covered under a 

liability and accident insurance plan approved by the Parks and Recreation Department and 
by the Camden County Board of Education or its designees, where Camden County Schools 
facilities are requested. The approved insurance plan shall list the County and Camden 
County Board of Education where school facilities are used as additional co-insured and a 
copy will be maintained on file with the Parks and Recreation Department and Camden 
County Board of Education where applicable. The amounts of such insurance shall not be 
less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) bodily injury each occurrence/aggregate and 
ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) property damage each occurrence/aggregate or ONE 
MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) bodily injury and property damage combined single limits 
each occurrence/aggregate. Further, such policy shall provide that any termination, 
cancellation, or reduction in coverage shall immediately be reported by the insurer to the 
County and the Board of Education where applicable.  

e. All coaches training, screening and certification programs, which are required by 
organization’s affiliation, are properly enforced. 

f. The organization is a member of, or affiliated with a local, regional, state, or national 
organization recognized as such, which provides rules and regulations governing play and all 
other managerial/administrative requirements. 

 
2. If an organization, other than those listed in this document, seeks recognized status, it must 

complete the required form and explain its compliance with the above criteria including 
insurance, all documents for non-profit status (501 3-C), and all documents regarding 
coach/instructor certifications. The organization must be approved by the Parks and Recreation 
Department, the Recreation Advisory Board, the Board of Education and the Board of 
Commissioners.  

 

                                                   

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

20
19

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
ls

  (
25

16
 :

 M
O

U
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n



 

7 
 

 7. Memorandum Renewal/Amendment 
 
This memorandum of understanding will be renewed annually at the joint meeting between the Camden 
County Board of Education and the Camden County Board of Commissioners. If either party wishes to 
change this document they must give written notification to the other party thirty (30) days prior to the 
date of change. Amendments to this memorandum require written approval by both parties.  
        
 

___________________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tom White, Chair      Date  
Camden County Board of Commissioners   
 
 
___________________________________________  ________________________________ 
Christian Overton, Chair      Date 
Camden County Board of Education    
 
 
___________________________________________  ________________________________ 
Joe Ferrell, Superintendent     Date 
Camden County Schools    
 
 
___________________________________________  ________________________________ 
Ken Bowman, County Manager     Date 
Camden County, North Carolina 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

20
19

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
ls

  (
25

16
 :

 M
O

U
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.D 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Senior Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Center for Active Adults Trip Policy 

 

Attachments: Trip Policy (DOC) 

Traveler's Form (DOC) 

 

Summary: 

Revised and updated Trip Policy for the Center for Active Adults. 

Recommendation: 

Review and approve. 

6.D

Packet Pg. 63



 

Camden County Center for Active Adults 
 

TRIP POLICY 
 

 All future trips (day and overnight) will require a deposit in order for your 
space to be reserved.     
 

 All overnight trips will include a specified non-refundable deposit. This is 
included in the cost of your trip fee and is applied to the trip.  
 

 Please tell staff person who your roommate is and if you have any travel 
companion preferences at time of registration. 
 

 Depending on the trip, staff will inform the participant how the checks will 
be payable.  Full payment must be made by the final payment deadline 
established by the Camden County Center for Active Adults. 

 

 You must fill out an Individual Trip Release prior to each trip.  
 

 If the trip is full, your name and phone number can be placed on a waiting 
list if you request that option.  (first come, first serve basis)  You will be 
contacted once a space becomes available and will need to pay the 
required fee upon notification. 

 

 If you plan to go on a trip, please be prepared to get your own 
transportation to the Camden County Center for Active Adults prior to the 
departure time.  We will leave on time.   
 

 ALL overnight and shopping day trips will leave from and return to the 
Camden County Center for Active Adults.  There will be no other pick up or 
drop off points no matter which direction the bus is going.  
 
 

 
 
 

Laura L. Jolley 
Coordinator 

 
ljolley@camdencountync.gov 

 
www.camdencountync.gov 

 

 

 
 

 

P.O. Box 190 
117 North 343 

Camden, NC  27921 

 
O + 1.252.335.2569 
F + 1.252.331.5621 

 
 

 

 

6.D.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
25

10
 :

 C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

A
ct

iv
e 

A
d

u
lt

s 
T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y)

mailto:ljolley@camdencountync.gov


 
 
 

 Seating on day trips and overnight trips is on first come, first serve based on 
when deposits are made. 
 

 If the trip involves two motor coaches, you will be automatically seated 
with your roommate.  At registration, you may make an additional request 
to be on the same bus with other participants.  Staff will do their best to 
accommodate the request but cannot guarantee it. 
 

 Motor coach buses provide a bathroom on the bus.  They typically like 
them to be used in emergency cases only.  If you need it, use it.  We will 
stop about every 2 ½- 3 hours at rest areas or other available stops for 
bathroom breaks. 
 

 Motor coach buses will be unloaded as directed by staff.   
 

 Participants must be self-sufficient to go on trips.  In some cases, the staff 
may require a physician’s certification to approve travel. 

 

 If you have to CANCEL and the trip is full AND your place can be filled from 
the waiting list, a refund will be given to you based on the tour company’s 
refund policy.  Registrant assumes risk of changes in personal affairs or 
health. Please allow three (3) weeks for your refund to be processed.  If 
show tickets have been purchased and are non-refundable-no refund will 
be issued. 
 

 Some trips have additional insurance available. The price of additional 
insurance is based on the travel agency and the price of the trip.  Insurance 
payment is due at the time of deposit but no later than 14 days of trip 
registration date.  Insurance fees are non-refundable even if you cancel the 
trip and get a full trip refund.   
 

 You will receive an itinerary from the Camden County Center for Active 
Adults.  You are required to follow the itinerary and keep up with it on your 
own. 
 

 If participant chooses not to participate in any event (s) on a trip, the group 
leader MUST BE NOTIFIED, but participant is still required to meet the 
group at the designated time set for departure. 
 

 

6.D.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
25

10
 :

 C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

A
ct

iv
e 

A
d

u
lt

s 
T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y)



 
 

 All trip participants must exhibit the following conduct: 
 Be considerate and treat others with kindness, courtesy and respect 
 Be calm and patient and refrain from using abusive, obscene, 

threatening, harassing, insulting, or suggestive language. 
 Not engage in (or threaten) physical violence. 
 Follow non-smoking policies while on motor coach or Camden 

County van. 
 Not possess weapons or firearms while participating in a Camden 

County sponsored trip. 
 Must be on time. 

 

 Overnight bus trip participants will be responsible for tipping the bus driver 
and any tour guides.  (Suggested gratuity for bus driver $2.00 per day/ 
person and tour guide is $2.00 per person) 
 

 Trips involving airline travel: participants are responsible for luggage fees 
and following the specific airlines carry on and checked luggage criteria.  
Participants are responsible for any special needs getting from one 
gate/terminal to another.  Please pre-arrange any special needs directly 
with specific airline. 
 

 Cruise participants MUST register with name as listed on your passport.  
There will be an additional charge from the travel agency/cruise line to 
change the name after the fact, if not registered correctly. 
 

 Cruise participants will be responsible for tipping the bus driver, luggage 
stewards upon embarking on the cruise ship will be required to give credit 
card information to the cruise line for the tip for entire cruise. (see 
attached information if applicable) 
 

 You must notify the staff of any changes in medical condition, changes of 
address or contact information. 
 

 All center trips will require a Camden County Center for Active Adults staff 
member to be the primary group leader. 
 

 The one trip comp (if applicable) will only be for the Camden County Center 
for Active Adults staff member leading the trip. 

 
 

 

6.D.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
25

10
 :

 C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

A
ct

iv
e 

A
d

u
lt

s 
T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y)



 

Camden County Center for Active Adults 
 
 

Traveler’s Form 
 

Personal Information 

Name (Last name, First name):  

 

______________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address:  

 

______________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________ 

Date of Birth: 

 

_____________________________________________________ 

Email Address:  

 

______________________________________________________ 

Phone Number(s):  

 

______________________________________________________ (Home) 

 

______________________________________________________ (Cell) 

Roommate(s) Name: 

 

______________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

Laura L. Jolley 
Coordinator 

 
ljolley@camdencountync.gov 

 
www.camdencountync.gov 

 

 

 
 

 

P.O. Box 190 
117 North 343 

Camden, NC  27921 

 
O + 1.252.335.2569 
F + 1.252.331.5621 

 
 

 

 

6.D.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

le
r'

s 
F

o
rm

  (
25

10
 :

 C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

A
ct

iv
e 

A
d

u
lt

s 
T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y)

mailto:ljolley@camdencountync.gov


 

Emergency Contact 

Primary Emergency Contact Name:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Phone Number: 

 _____________________________________________________ 

Relationship:  

______________________________________________________ 

Alternate Emergency Contact Name:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Phone Number:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Relationship:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Medical Information 

Primary Doctor’s Name:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Doctor’s Phone Number:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Medical Insurance Carrier:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Known Medical Conditions (optional):  

_____________________________________________________ 

Known allergies:  

_____________________________________________________ 

Current Medications:  

_____________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________ 

 

6.D.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

le
r'

s 
F

o
rm

  (
25

10
 :

 C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

A
ct

iv
e 

A
d

u
lt

s 
T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y)



 

Camden County Center for Active Adults 

 

The undersigned participant has provided the required information and affirms its accuracy and 

completeness. It is understood that it is the sole responsibility of the participant to ensure that updated 

information is provided to the trip coordinators should any of the details change over the course of the 

year.  

 

Participants Information 

Name (Last name, First name):  

______________________________________________________ 

Phone Number:  

______________________________________________________ 

 

It is understood that I (the participant) will not hold the County of Camden, its employees or volunteers, 

of the Camden County Center for Active Adults thereof, responsible for any injury or illness which may 

occur during my participation in any trip related activity sponsored by the Camden County Center for 

Active Adults.  

 

Signature____________________________________Date___________________ 

 

NOTE: If an emergency exists during a trip, please dial 9-1-1 and contact your group leader immediately. 

Emergency contacts listed must be accessible during trips. It is strongly recommended that participants 

advise emergency contacts that they will be called should you experience a personal emergency while 

participating on a trip sponsored by, or in conjunction with, County of Camden. Additional forms are 

available from the Camden County Center for Active Adults. All forms must be returned prior to 

participating on a trip and will remain valid until the next calendar year. We recommend that you keep a 

copy for your file.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

Insurance:   Yes  No 

Deposit Date: 

Trip Destination:  

 

Trip Date:  

Insurance:   Yes  No 

Deposit Date: 

6.D.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

le
r'

s 
F

o
rm

  (
25

10
 :

 C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

A
ct

iv
e 

A
d

u
lt

s 
T

ri
p

 P
o

lic
y)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.E 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Use Policy 

 

Attachments: Vehicle Use Policy_rev0919 (DOCX) 

Vehicle Mileage Log (XLSX) 

Release Form Template (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

As part of the review of existing county policies, the Vehicle Use Policy has been updated and 

revised accordingly. 

Recommendation: 

Review and approve. 

6.E

Packet Pg. 70



County Owned Vehicles Policy 

1 
Approved: October 7, 2019 

 

 

Section 1. Background and Purpose 
 
The purpose of this policy is to define the responsibilities and rules for the use of county vehicles to conduct 

county business. This policy is applicable to all vehicles owned or leased by the county, its departments, 

agencies, or special districts regardless of funding source, except for heavy duty trucks and fire apparatuses.  

 

Section 2. Policy 
 
It is the policy of Camden County to provide employee access to county-owned vehicles.  County 
vehicles are valuable resources that enable county business to be carried out in accordance with 
county-wide principles and standards.  It is the policy of the Board of Commissioners to provide, equip 
and maintain essential, safe, and presentable transportation equipment for the use of county officers, 
county employees, and authorized county volunteers to conduct county business.  County vehicles are 
not personal vehicles and are not for personal use unless authorized by the County Manager (i.e. 
County training, Conferences, etc.) a de minimis amount of personal use, such as driving the vehicle to 
and from dinner, may be allowed pursuant to the Internal Revenue Service Code (IRS) and 
regulations. 
 
If use outside County boundaries Non-County employees may accompany County employees if they 
have a business interest in the travel.  Spouses and children of County employees may accompany 
them in County vehicles as approved by the County Manager if space is available and the trip is strictly 
for official County business. 
 
Authorized drivers should use county vehicles, other approved contracted transportation services or 
privately-owned vehicles to conduct county business in accordance with county/department policy. 
Reimbursement for use of a privately owned vehicle shall be provided at the current IRS 
reimbursement rate.  
 
Factors to be considered when deciding between using a county vehicle and other means of 
transportation include:  

 Availability of a county vehicle  
 Cost of a county vehicle versus IRS mileage reimbursement  
 Availability of other approved transportations services 
 Economical use of employee time and operational efficiency 
 Appropriateness of the vehicle for the required use  

 
All of the factors listed above should be considered and the option that is most beneficial to the county 
as a whole should be selected. 
 

County vehicles should be viewed as belonging to the citizens of Camden County and are assigned 

solely for purposes consistent with providing services to those citizens. This policy covers all county 

employees, whether or not they are probationary, permanent, or temporary employees of the county. 

 
All employees, who use County vehicles, are required to follow applicable motor vehicle and safety 

requirements.  Violation or misuse of County vehicles also subjects the employee to disciplinary 

action, up to and including dismissal. 

 

 

 

6.E.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y_
re

v0
91

9 
 (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)



County Owned Vehicles Policy 

2 
Approved: October 7, 2019 

 

 

This policy pairs with the Camden County Personnel Policy, Article VI. Conditions of Employment, 

Section 8. Use of County Time, Equipment, Supplies and Vehicles as found on the county’s website at: 

www.camdencountync.gov  on the Human Resources page. 

 

Section 3. Definition  

For the purpose of this policy a vehicle is defined as: County vehicle includes every car, truck, four-

wheel drive, sport utility vehicle, bus, van, minivan, off road two, three or quad unit, trailer purchased 

with County funds. This policy does not apply to heavy duty trucks of a gross vehicle weight rating 

(GVWR) of 26,000 or more or fire apparatuses (i.e., engines and trucks). 

 
Section 4. Assignment of County Vehicles 
 
The assignment of County vehicles to employees is based upon job description. Department Heads 

who have County vehicles available for this purpose may assign such vehicles in a manner consistent 

with departmental workload and employee function. 

 
Sheriff Staff 
Sheriff staff shall be assigned vehicles to be used for county travel throughout the day as deemed 

necessary for the purpose of fulfilling their job duties. Because these positions require twenty-four 

(24) hour coverage, staff is allowed to drive their vehicles home at night in case of emergency 

situations.  

 

Public Works Staff 
Public Works staff shall be assigned vehicles to be used for county travel throughout the day as 
deemed necessary for the purpose of fulfilling their job duties. Vehicles will remain in the parking 
lot at the end of the day unless the employee is required to attend overnight or out of town 
meetings.  The Public Works Manager may be allowed to take a vehicle home at night to respond 
in case of emergency situations.  

 
Building Inspections Staff 
Building Inspections staff shall be assigned vehicles to be used for county travel throughout the day 
as deemed necessary for the purpose of fulfilling their job duties. Vehicles will remain in the 
parking lot at the end of the day unless the employee is required to attend overnight or out of town 
meetings. 

 
Soil and Water Staff 
Soil and Water Staff shall be assigned vehicles to be used for county travel throughout the day as 
deemed necessary for the purpose of fulfilling their job duties. Vehicles will remain in the parking 
lot at the end of the day unless the employee is required to attend overnight or out of town 
meetings. 

 
Social Services Staff 
Social Services Staff shall be assigned vehicles to be used for county travel throughout the day as 
deemed necessary for the purpose of fulfilling their job duties. Vehicles will remain in the parking 
lot at the end of the day unless the employee is required to attend overnight or out of town 
meetings. 

 
 
 

6.E.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y_
re

v0
91

9 
 (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/


County Owned Vehicles Policy 

3 
Approved: October 7, 2019 

 

 

Senior Center Staff 
Senior Center Staff shall be assigned vehicles to be used for county travel throughout the day as 
deemed necessary for the purpose of fulfilling their job duties. Vehicles will remain in the parking 
lot at the end of the day unless the employee is required to attend overnight or out of town 
meetings. 

 
General Staff 
All other staff have access to a pool of vehicles for incidental travel and for meetings and 
trainings as well as overnight travel. These vehicles must be reserved and signed out for use. 

 

Section 5. Administration 

A. County Vehicle Identification  

1. The words “County of Camden” or an agency, department, or county emblem, shall 
be placed on every county vehicle.  

2. Unmarked county vehicles are permitted for: investigative work, collection work, 
children’s services, coroner services, the Board of Commissioners and their staff, and 
other specified services as approved by the County Manager.  

 

B. Procedure for Procuring Use of Pool Vehicles 
 

1. All pool vehicles will be signed out through either the Permit Planning Clerk located 

in the Planning Department or Clerk to the Board/Assistant to the Manager located in 

the County Manager’s office. A requesting party may ask for special consideration to 

use his/her personal vehicle for travel for long distance travel and be reimbursed if 

approved by the County Manager. 

2. Vehicle usage will be scheduled as far in advance as possible. Scheduling will 

include approximate length of time required. 

3. A clipboard with the vehicle mileage log form is kept for each vehicle and must be 

maintained in the vehicle when in use. The clipboard, along with the key & gas card for 

the vehicle, shall be returned to the location they were acquired from at the end of 

each use. Beginning and ending mileage along with purpose shall be documented. 

Employee will be responsible for returning the clipboard, key & gas card at the end of 

the trip. 

4. A notation must be made on the log regarding the program that should be charged 

for the travel being provided. Smoking is not permitted in agency vehicles. 

5. All trash must be removed from the vehicle after usage. 

6. Texting while driving is prohibited. Employees should wait until they are in a safe 

place to pull off of the road to text. Utilize best professional judgment when making 

or receiving calls. 

7. It is the responsibility of the employee using the vehicle to check the fuel level at 

the end of their usage. If the fuel registers less than ¾ full per tank, employee will be 

responsible for securing fuel for the vehicle. 

8. Using the fuel card for personal use will result in disciplinary action leading up to 

or including termination. 

 

6.E.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y_
re

v0
91

9 
 (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)



County Owned Vehicles Policy 

4 
Approved: October 7, 2019 

 

 

 

9. Inform the Maintenance Department if vehicle needs servicing (i.e. oil change, 

inspection, tires) and let them also know if the vehicle needs washing and 

vacuuming. 

10. Situations may occur in which the County Manager or his/her designee assigns a 

vehicle to someone other than an employee who had previously requested a vehicle. 

This will be done on a case by case situation. 

 
C. Maintenance and Upkeep of Vehicles  

 
1. Maintenance department keeps a maintenance log for all General and Senior Center 
Vehicles. Each vehicle has reminder dates on the dash that show when the vehicle is 
due an oil change or inspection. Assigned vehicles to individuals in a department are 
responsible for maintaining their own maintenance logs and maintenance on the 
vehicles. 
2. If a pool vehicle has other issues that may appear, the driver of the pool vehicle must 
personally contact the Maintenance Department regarding the issue that needs to be 
addressed. They are also to place a note on the individual travel log assigned to the 
vehicle for record keeping. 

 
D.  Fuel Maintenance 

 
1. It is the responsibility of each driver to make sure the fuel gauge is checked after use 

of the vehicle. If the vehicle fuel gauge registers at ¾ tank or below, the driver is 

responsible for making sure the vehicle is filled up, using the fuel card issued to that car. 

 
E. Authorization to Drive & Driving Record 

 
1. All employees will have a Motor Vehicle Background Check completed prior to 
employment.  
2. Employees who operate county vehicles must have a valid motor vehicle license 
issued by the state of their current residence and be considered an insurable risk by 
the county’s automobile liability insurance carrier. 

3. On at least an annual basis, the county will request a copy of all employees driver’s 

license and may obtain from the Department of Motor Vehicles, or authorized vendor 

for DMV records, the driving record of every driver of county vehicles to determine 

his/her ability to drive safely. 

4. Employees driving county vehicles shall obey all applicable traffic and parking 
regulations, ordinances, and laws. 
5. Employees who incur parking or other fines in county vehicles will generally be 
personally responsible for payment of such fines unless the payment of such fines by 
the county is approved by the County Manager. 
6. Employees who are issued citations for any offense while using a county vehicle 
must notify their supervisor and the Department Head immediately when practicable, 
but in no case later than 24 hours or the start of the next business day, whichever is 
later. Failure to provide such notice will be grounds for disciplinary action. 
 
 
 

6.E.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y_
re

v0
91

9 
 (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)



County Owned Vehicles Policy 

5 
Approved: October 7, 2019 

 

 

7. An employee who is assigned a county vehicle and who is arrested for or charged 
with a motor vehicle offense for which the punishment includes suspension or 
revocation of the motor vehicle license, whether in his or her personal vehicle or in a 
county vehicle, must notify his or her supervisor and Department Head immediately 
when practicable; but in no case later than 24 hours or the start of the next business 
day, whichever is later. Failure to provide such notice will be grounds for disciplinary 
action. 
8. Any motor vehicle accident while operating a county vehicle must be reported to 
your Supervisor and the Human Resources office immediately when practicable, but in 
no case later than 24 hours or the start of the next business day, whichever, is later. 
9. All accidents can be reviewed by the Safety Committee (recommendations 
submitted to the County Manager). Such review may result in a recommendation to the 
department head for disciplinary action of the employee, if such accident was a result 
of a violation of the county’s safety policy. 
10. A violation of an applicable traffic parking regulation, ordinance, and law may be 
grounds for loss of County vehicle privileges. 
11. For employees whose job responsibilities require that they possess an active, valid 
driver’s license, a suspension or revocation of the motor vehicle license may result in 
termination from employment. 

 
F. General Rules Defining Appropriate Use of County Owned Vehicles 

 
1. Except as otherwise noted, use of county-owned vehicles is restricted to official 

county business. Official county business is defined as travel to and from any function, 

event or location that is visited as part of the employee’s official duties. 

2. The county vehicle may be used during non-duty hours on overnight assignments 

away from the employee’s workplace or residence when other forms of transportation 

are not available. Use is limited to the immediate vicinity of the assignment area with 

department approval. 

3. The employee may use the county vehicle for necessary personal business when the 

following conditions exist: 

 
 The employee is in route between locations visited for official county business 

or when in route between home and the workplace; and; 

 The use is “de minimus” in time and value. Personal use is bound to the limits of 

reasonableness and to public responsibility. 

 
4. County vehicles should be driven over the most economically, direct route taking into 

account exceptions due to safety needs, road conditions and traffic considerations. 

 
G. General Rules Governing Use of County Owned Vehicles 

 
1. County vehicles should be driven only by County employees. However, nonemployees 

may drive County vehicles, under the direct approval of the County Manager. 

2. Passengers in County vehicles must be county employees or others whose presence 

is justified by official county business (non- county employees must sign a Passenger 

Release form attached). No hitchhikers may be passengers in any county vehicle. Any 

special circumstances requiring deviation from this policy must be requested by written 

6.E.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y_
re

v0
91

9 
 (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)



County Owned Vehicles Policy 

6 
Approved: October 7, 2019 

 

 

justification and receive advance written authority from the County Manager. 

3. All areas of county-owned vehicles, inside and out, are open to inspection at all times 

by County Authority, including the employee’s supervisor, Department Head, the 

Human Resources Director, the County Manager or a designee of the County Manager. 

Random inspections shall be conducted by these authorized personnel who may also be 

assisted by Law Enforcement. No expectation of privacy exists except for items 

expressly permitted. 

4. Vehicles should contain only those items designed for use with the vehicle, items 
installed by the county or items assigned by the county for transportation on the 
vehicle. Personal items in county vehicles shall be prohibited except for items of 
clothing, items of general purpose used such as purses, wallets, cell phones, and office 
related items. 
5. Vehicles shall not contain items such as alcohol for consumption, non-prescribed 
drugs, obscene materials and other items whose possession would be deemed “Gross 
Personal Misconduct”.   
6. Employees are expected to keep County vehicles clean, and to report any malfunction 
or damage to Maintenance immediately. Employees who are assigned vehicles for 
commuting purposes are expected to park such vehicles in safe locations. 
7. Seatbelts, shoulder harnesses and other appropriate restraint systems must be used 
by both the driver and passengers of County vehicles. Failure to do so constitutes a 
misuse of a County vehicle. 
8. Employees may not operate County vehicles under the influence of alcohol, illegal 
drugs, or prescription drugs or other medications, such as over the counter medications 
that may interfere with effective and safe operation. 
9. No employee may use a County vehicle for out of state use without advanced approval 
of the Department Head and the County Manager. 
10. Employees shall not alter or change any operational aspect of a County vehicle. Any 
such alterations or changes must be approved by the Department Head. 
11. Animals may not be transported in a County vehicle, with the exception of service 
animals accompanying official passengers or animals transported by Animal Control 
personnel. Exceptions may be made for the safety of the animal or the general public. 
12. County vehicles may be equipped with a GPS monitoring device. This device 
provides data on the physical location of the vehicle as a function of time. Any employee 
who tampers with the device, who attempts to prevent the device from functioning 
properly, or who attempts to affect the accuracy of the information collected, will be 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. The employee 
responsible for the County vehicle is equally accountable for preventing others from 
tampering with the device. 

 
H. Misuse of County Vehicles and Policy Violations 

 
Failure to comply with any and all provisions of this policy, as specified above, or misuse 
of a vehicle may result in: 

 
 Denial to the employee for further use of vehicles; 

 Reimbursement by the employee to the County for any resultant damage or 
cost; and/or 

 Disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 
 

6.E.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y_
re

v0
91

9 
 (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)



County Owned Vehicles Policy 

7 
Approved: October 7, 2019 

 

 

I.  Special Circumstances 
 

1. This policy is intended to provide a basic framework governing the use of County 

vehicles, and as such, cannot contain procedures governing every situation that might 

arise. Employees seeking clarification of or an exemption from the provisions of this 

policy should contact Human Resources who will provide such clarification and with 

County Manager approval may authorize exceptions to the policy under mitigating 

circumstances. 

2. Additional clarification may be procured through the office of the County Manager 

and/or the County Attorney. 

6.E.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y_
re

v0
91

9 
 (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)



Vehicle: Month/Year:

Date Out Date In Mileage Out Mileage In

Total Miles Reimb Rate Miles Reimb Rate Reimbursement

Vehicle Mileage Reimbursement 10-4450-414000

Vehicle Maintance Concerns/Issues:

Camden County Vehicle Mileage Log

Department Purpose

Billing Account Code

Employee

**Vehicles must be returned with gas tank 3/4 full**

Total Reimbursement

6.E.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 M

ile
ag

e 
L

o
g

  (
25

25
 :

 V
eh

ic
le

 U
se

 P
o

lic
y)



6.E.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 M

ile
ag

e 
L

o
g

  (
25

25
 :

 V
eh

ic
le

 U
se

 P
o

lic
y)



PASSENGER RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS AND AGREEMENT 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF good and valuable consideration, I being of 

lawful age have released and discharged and by these presents do for myself, my heirs, 

executors, administrators, successors, and assigns release, acquit, and forever discharge 

Camden County and any and all other persons, firms, associations and corporations whether 

herein named or referred to or not, of and from any and all past, present, and future actions, 

causes of actions, liability, claims or demands of any and every kind and nature (including but 

not limited to third party actions and suits at law or in equity for contributions or indemnity 

upon or by reason of any and every kind of damage, cost, loss, expense or compensation, and 

any and every kind of bodily, personal, mental, or emotional injury, suffering or distress, 

whether known, unknown, suspected or unsuspected, which have been or may hereafter be 

sustained or incurred on account of or in any way growing out of or as a result or consequence 

of any and all matters alleged or contended by me that may or might result from my occupancy 

of a vehicle owned by Camden County. 

It is specifically understood and agreed that this release of any firm, association or 

corporation also releases, acquits and forever discharges the partners, directors, officers, 

agents, servants and employees, and also any parent, subsidiary and affiliated corporations 

of any released firm, association, corporation or unit of government. 

I further agree that this release is a complete release of all matters involving disputed 

issues of law and fact and that I fully assume the risk that the facts or law may be otherwise 

than I believe, and further that this release as stated herein is not to be construed as an 

admission of liability on the part of any party hereby released, by whom liability is expressly 

denied. 

This release contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto and the terms 

of this release are contractual and not a mere recital. 

I further state that I have carefully read the foregoing release and know the contents 

thereof, and have signed the same as my own free act. 

WITNESS my hand and seal, this the _______ day of ___________   

 _______________________________  

Witness 

6.E.c

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

el
ea

se
 F

o
rm

 T
em

p
la

te
  (

25
25

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 U

se
 P

o
lic

y)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.F 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-10-01 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2019-10-01 Census Partnership

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Resolution 2019-10-01 officially creates a 2020 Census Complete Count Committee and forms a 

partnership with the 2020 Census Bureau. 

Recommendation: 

Review and approve. 

6.F

Packet Pg. 81



 
 

Resolution 2019-10-01  

2020 Census Partnership 

 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Census Bureau is required by the U.S. Constitution to conduct a complete count of the 

population and provides a historic opportunity to help shape the foundation of our society and play an active 

role in American democracy; 

 
WHEREAS, Camden County is committed to ensuring every resident is counted; 

 

WHEREAS, federal and state funding is allocated to communities, and decisions are made on matters of 

national and local importance based, in part, on census data and housing; 

 

WHEREAS, census data help determine how many seats each state will have in the U.S. House of 

Representatives and are necessary for an accurate and fair redistricting of state legislative seats, county and 

city councils and voting districts; 

 

WHEREAS, information from the 2020 Census and American Community Survey is vital for economic 

development and increased employment; 

 

WHEREAS, the information collected by the census is confidential and protected by law; 

 

WHEREAS, a united voice from business, government, community-based and faith-based organizations, 

educators, media and others will enable the 2020 Census message to reach more of our residents; 

 

WHEREAS, the Census count requires extensive work, and the Census Bureau requires partners at the state 

and local level to insure a complete and accurate count; 

 

WHEREAS, Camden County and its appointed Complete Count Committee will bring together a cross section 

of community members who will utilize their local knowledge and expertise to reach out to all persons of our 

community; 

 

Now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED that Camden County is committed to partnering with the U.S. Census 

Bureau and the State of North Carolina and will: 

 

1. Support the goals for the 2020 Census and will disseminate 2020 Census information; 

2. Encourage all County residents to participate in events and initiatives that will raise the overall awareness of 

the 2020 Census and increase participation; 

3. Provide CCC members and Census advocates to speak to County and Community Organizations; 

4. Support census takers as they help our County complete an accurate count; and, 

5. Strive to achieve a complete and accurate count of all persons within our borders. 

 

Adopted this the 7th day of October 2019. 

 

      

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1 

C
en

su
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  (
25

28
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

10
-0

1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.G 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Bank Account Closure 

 

Attachments: NC Community Foundation (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Effective July 1, 2020 this account for the Historic County Courthouse Endowment will no 

longer be able to continue with North Carolina Community Foundation due to the small 

balance.   

Recommendation: 

Approve account closure. 

6.G

Packet Pg. 83



NORTH CAROI INA 

COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

December 7, 2018 

Mr. Michael R. Renshaw 
County Manager 
Camden County 
P. 0. Box 190 
Camden, NC 27921 

Dear Mr. Renshaw: 

You are receiving this letter because you are the fundholder or advisor of a fund held with the North Carolina 
Community Foundation: Historic Camden County Courthouse Endowment 

You recently received a message from NCCF in your August fund statement outlining our plans to increase 
fund minimums, grant distributions and adjust fees. This summary is enclosed for your reference. 
I am reaching out to you now as your staff liaison to let you know that your fund will be affected by these 
changes. Your fund balance, as of September 30, is $5,348. The new required minimum balance for your fund 
is $25,000, effective July 1, 2020. Your fee is 1.0%, a change of 0.0%. The new minimum grant distribution for 
your fund is $250, effective January 1. 

Also effective January 1, distributions from designated and agency endowments will occur quarterly, according 
to the schedule below. 
• Requests received by March 1 will be distributed by March 15. 
• Requests received by June 1 will be distributed by June 15. 
• Requests received by September 1 will be distributed by September 15. 
• Requests received by December 1 will be distributed by December 15. 

We value the privilege you've entrusted in us as your philanthropic partner and want to speak with you to 
review some options we've identified for the future of your fund. 
I would like to connect with you soon to discuss your fund in more detail. My contact information is listed 
below. If I don't hear from you by January 1, I will reach out to you. 
We want to continue to meet your charitable goals. The changes we have made or will implement to your 
fund, grant and fee structure will strengthen our work and leverage the impact of your generosity now and in 
the future. We are steadfast in our wish to remain your philanthropic partner. 

Sincerely, 

Natalie Peel 
npeel@nccommunityfoundation.org 
252.562.9824 

6.G.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
F

o
u

n
d

at
io

n
  (

25
14

 :
 B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

C
lo

su
re

)



Reprint of Aug. 15 nccfnotes, enclosed with fund statements 

Dear NCCF Fundholder: 
As the North Carolina Community Foundation marks our 30-year anniversary, we want to express how 
much we appreciate your philanthropic leadership and the trust you've placed in us to steward your 
charitable funds. Communities throughout our state have benefitted from the permanent resources 
you've created to support so many important organizations and causes. Thank you for allowing us to 
assist you in making a meaningful impact. 

As our foundation has grown over these past few decades, so have our opportunities and challenges. 
The philanthropic landscape is changing, both locally and nationally, and the demands on NCCF to 
provide leadership, manage resources and respond to increasing regulatory demands are mounting. 
Ongoing investments in technology are critical for service and information delivery to our constituents 
statewide. We want to ensure that we are focused on impactful grantmaking. 

These changes led NCCF's board to conduct a careful analysis of our business model to examine how we 
can improve and strengthen our services. With input from affiliate leaders and staff, the group has spent 
the last eight months reviewing our funds, fees and work. The result is a business plan that ensures a 
balance between our mission and efficient administration to maximize impact. NCCF's board adopted 
the new plan in June that calls for an increase in fund balances and changes to some of our fees. Some 
changes began July 1 and others will be implemented over the next two years. 

This edition of Fundnotes provides an overview of these changes, some of which may affect you. Each of 
our fundholders will receive communications from us beginning this fall that outline how your funds 
may be impacted. In summary: 

Minimums: Effective July 1, establishing a new fund will require $25,000. This is a fund minimum we 
have recommended for the last decade. Also effective July 1, establishing a new scholarship will require 
$40,000. Existing endowments will have up to two years to reach minimum balances, and we'll work 
with our fundholders to realize these new requirements. Again, NCCF will reach out to you to outline 
how we can address your specific needs. 

Effective Jan. 1, minimum grants amounts from scholarship funds will be set at $1,000 and donor 
advised funds will be $250. 

Fees: A new fee structure also went into effect July 1 for new funds and Jan. 1 for existing funds. This is 
our first adjustment to endowed fees in 11 years. Some fees will remain unchanged, others will decrease 
and some will go up. Donor advised fees will decrease from 1.5% to 1 %. Scholarship fees will start at 
2%. Affiliate unrestricted funds will go from 1.0% to 1.50% for endowments under $3 million. Fees will 
decrease as funds grow. A relatively small percentage of our funds are affected by the new fee 
structure. 

What does this mean for you? Some donors will see little or no change. Others will hear from us to 
outline the path forward for your fund. We want to help ensure that your fund and your philanthropy 
remain as effective as possible. 

Thank you for allowing us to serve as your philanthropic partner. We remain steadfast in our 
commitment to stewarding your funds to ensure maximum impact. 

6.G.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
F

o
u

n
d

at
io

n
  (

25
14

 :
 B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

C
lo

su
re

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.H 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Interim Finance Officer 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Resolution 2019-09-02 naming Stephanie Jackson as Interim Finance Officer was adopted on 

September 16, 2019 (effective October 1, 2019). 

Recommendation: 

Increase salary to the minimum salary range of $65,922 effective October 1, 2019. 

6.H

Packet Pg. 86



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Community Advisory Committee 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of the Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee that Tammie Krauss 

be reappointed for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approve reappointment. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 87



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   ABC Board - Reappointments 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of the ABC Board that Wayne Walston and Michael McLain be reappointed for 

an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

7.B

Packet Pg. 88



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - September 9, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_090919 (DOCX) 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 89



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

September 9, 2019 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on September 9, 2019 in the Historic 

Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 6:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak and Ross Munro.   

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss property acquisition and personnel. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

The Board came out of Closed Session at 6:40 PM and was recessed by the Chairman until 7:00 PM. 

 

At 7:00 PM Chairman White reconvened the Board of Commissioners for its regular meeting and welcomed 

everyone in attendance. 

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Rev. Bill Blake gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS        

 

Brenda Bowman of Trestles Court included the following information in her remarks: 

 Citizen News recently published 

 National Cleanup Day – September 21, 2019  

 Camden Heritage Festival – May 2020  

 

 

ITEM 2. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



2 

 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

 

ITEM 3. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT    

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict Of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 4. PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. YouthVoice Conference – Adriane Navolis reported on her experience as a YouthVoice delegate at the 

National Association of County Commissioners Annual Conference in Greensboro, NC. 

B. CMS Junior Beta Club – Club Advisor Star Brinner and members of the CMS Junior Beta Club reported on 

their accomplishments at the recent Beta Club State and National Conventions. 

C. Regional Advisory Council – Gwen Wescott included updates on the following in her report from a recent 

meeting of the Regional Advisory Council: 

 Senior Nutrition Program 

 Dementia and Caregiving Program 

 Scam Alerts 

 Senior Recognition Day 

 Santa’s Bags Program 

D. Broadband Update – County Manager Ken Bowman presented an update on behalf of Eastern Shore 

Communications and included the following:  

 Eastern Shore Communications is working with NCDOT and NCDENR (NC Dept. of 

Environment and Natural Resources) to secure county-wide permits. 

 Environmental is complete and signed off through USDA.   

 Phase I will bring fiber from the north water tower to the south water tower via the County 

Office and Library.  The point of connection to MCNC (Microelectronics Center of NC) will 

be at the Shipyard Road/343 intersection. 

 Eastern Shore Communications is working on a plan to extend fiber to the Camden Business 

Park. 

 Plans have been submitted to Public Works to install wireless equipment on the two water 

towers.  Plans are under review by County Staff. 

 Plans no longer call for telecommunication shelters to be constructed on County property (at 

the two water towers).  The alternative plan is to have a small enclosure on an elevated (2 

feet) wooden pedestal with room for a generator and propane tank.  This dramatically reduces 

the footprint to perhaps 30 to 40 square feet.  ESC requests the Board of Commissioners to 

approve the start of construction at the towers and install the wireless equipment in the 

October/November timeframe. 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water 

& Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



3 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

   

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – David Credle 

 

 
 

 
Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors. 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



4 

 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Chairman White reconvened the meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 5. PUBLIC HEARING          

 

A. Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application  

 

Motion to go into Public Hearing for Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Zoning Officer Dave Parks introduced the applicant Eric Wood.  Mr. Wood stated that it is his intention to cut the 

two-acre lot down to one-acre lots.  It is his request that the property be rezoned from Rural Residential to Village 

Residential.   

 

Dave Parks gave an overview of the property maps and presented the Staff Report.   

 

   
 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



5 

 

     
 

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



6 

 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



7 

 

   
 

Chairman White opened the floor for public comments on the rezoning application. 

 

David Seymour of 114 Mandy Lane addressed the Board.  Mr. Seymour spoke in opposition to the rezoning and 

believes it should be left as it is currently; two-acre lots.   

 

William Dozier of 209 Country Club Road addressed the Board.  Mr. Dozier spoke in opposition to the rezoning and 

expressed concern in regard to drainage issues and lot sizes.   

 

Dave Parks reminded the Board that drainage concerns are addressed during the process of property development.   

 

There being no further comments from the public Chairman White called for a motion to close the Public Hearing.   

 

Motion to close the public hearing for Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to consider Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application at the next meeting to take place on October 

7, 2019. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-1] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs 

NAY: Munro 

  

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



8 

 

ITEM 6. OLD BUSINESS          

 

A. Travel Policy – Ken Bowman 

 

The travel policy was updated with travel guidance pertaining to per diem rates, credit card usage and mileage 

allowances for privately-owned vehicles.   

 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



9 

 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



10 

 

Motion to approve the travel policy mileage reimbursement at the current IRS rate at the time of travel. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to approve the travel policy meal reimbursement as presented by the County Manager. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

B. Library Lease Contract – Ken Bowman 

 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



11 

 

   
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



12 

 

     
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



13 

 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



14 

 

Motion to approve the Library Lease Contract as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

C. Revised Camden Code Chapter 150 Minimum Housing Code 

 

The Revised Camden Code Chapter 150 Minimum Housing Code was first introduced to the Board at its August 5, 

2019 meeting.  The ordinance was not adopted in that a unanimous vote is required on the date of introduction for 

adoption.  The vote taken on August 5, 2019 was as follows: 3 in favor, 2 opposed.  Therefore the ordinance was 

placed on the agenda for consideration a second time.    

 

Planning Director Dan Porter highlighted language in §150.20 that establishes the specific criteria for investigating 

possible code violations. 

 

County Attorney John Morrison explained that the state statutes allow the County, operating under reasonable 

grounds, to adopt such an ordinance. 

 

Commissioner Krainiak expressed concern in regard to the timeframe allowed for the property owner to take the 

necessary action to be in compliance with the ordinance. 

 

Mr. Porter explained that the most important timeframe is the timeframe in which to hold a hearing.   

 

Motion to approve replacing the existing Chapter 150 Building Regulations: Construction with the Proposed 

Ordinance No. 2019-08-01.   

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to direct the Building Inspections Division to conduct investigations according to Chapter 150.2 (C).   

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

ITEM 7. NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Monthly Tax Report – Lisa Anderson presented the tax report for July 2019. 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



15 

 

 

 
 

 
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



16 

 

30 Largest Unpaid - Real 

 
30 Oldest Unpaid - Real 

 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



17 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

 

B. Milltown Boat Ramp 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the Milltown Boat Ramp project bid recommendation. 

 

The Milltown Boat Ramp was constructed in 2004 with funding assistance from CAMA ACCESS Grant. Over the 

years it has been used consistently but has also undergone significant deterioration due to many storms. In spring of 

2018 the ramp became dangerous due to undercutting erosion at the submerged end of the ramp and was closed to 

the public. 

 

The county contracted with a marine engineering consultant to prepare plans and specifications to repair and/or 

replace the, pier, rip rap, and bulkhead along with redesigning and replacing the boat ramp that may better weather 

the periodic storms. 

 

The project went to bid in January 2018 but no bids were received due to the short timeframe objective and most 

contractors were busy in Wilmington with repairs resulting from major hurricanes.   

 

The project was rebid in June with a completion date for December 2019.  Two bids were received and reviewed by 

staff with the following recommendation:  Approve contract for $41,556 with Layden Marine Inc. for the repair and 

replacement of the Milltown Boat Ramp and Pier per the plans a specification included in the request for proposals 

of June 14, 2019. 

 

Motion to approve contract for $41,556 with Layden Marine, Inc. for the repair and replacement of the 

Milltown Boat Ramp & Pier per the plans and specification included in the request for proposals of June 14, 

2019. 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



18 

 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

ITEM 8. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

 

Motion to appoint Marc O’Neal to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

ITEM 9. CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 

 

B. Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



19 

 

C. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



20 

 

 

E. Refunds Over $100 – July 2019 

 

 
 

F. Refunds Over $100 – August 2019 

 

 
 

G. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



21 

 

 
 

 

 

H. Surplus Property Request 

 

Department Item Disposal Method Reason 

JCPC Dell Desktop 

 

GovDeals No longer needed 

JCPC Lenovo Laptop 

 

GovDeals No longer needed 

Planning 2007 Durango  

SLT 4x4 

GovDeals Replaced 

Elections Lexmark Printer 

 

GovDeals Replaced 

 

 

I. Proposed County Logo & Tag Line – Moved to Other Matters on agenda for discussion 

 

J. Resolution 2019-09-01 Opposing Proposed Amendment 2 of the Southern Flounder Fishery Management 

Plan 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



22 

 

   
 

K. DHHS Request – Operation Santa Claus Project 

 

 
 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



23 

 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs offered a motion to pull Item I – Proposed County Logo & Tag Line from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion and approve the Consent Agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

ITEM 10. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

 M.B. Kahn Construction presentation on the school facility study – September 16, 2019; 6 PM at the 

Library 

 Special Election – September 10, 2019 

 9/11 Ceremony – September 11, 2019; Courthouse Lawn; Moment of Silence, 8:46 AM 

 Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – October 7, 2019 

 Hurricane Dorian Situational Update 

 

ITEM 11. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Chairman White expressed appreciation to the electric company employees who worked long hours to get power 

restored to the area in a timely manner. 

 

Commissioner Meiggs expressed appreciation to the South Mills Volunteer Fire Department for their efforts during 

the hurricane.   

 

Chairman Riggs expressed appreciation to all the first responders who worked and served in various capacities 

during the storm. 

 

ITEM 12. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

 

The following items were provided for information purposes: 

A. YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collections 

B. Register of Deeds Report 

C. JCPC Meeting Minutes 

D. Library Report 

 

ITEM 13. OTHER MATTERS          

 

Moved From Consent Agenda: I. Proposed County Logo and Tag Line 

 

Commissioner Meiggs stated that to his recollection the logo was not brought to the Board for a vote.  Therefore, the 

logo and tag line should not have been changed without approval from the Board.  Commissioner Meiggs does not 

believe the tag line ‘Boundless Opportunities’ fits Camden County.   

 

County Manager Ken Bowman stated that the decision to change the logo took place through the Administration 

Office and that the logo had been sent to the Board members informally in June for review and approval.  The logo 

and tag line were designed by Emery Advertising in an effort to assist with County branding and marketing.  It was 

Mr. Bowman’s recommendation that the logo be approved as presented.   

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



24 

 

Motion to approve the logo as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-1] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

NAYS: Meiggs 

  

ITEM 14. ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

Chairman White adjourned the meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 8:42 PM. 

 

 

            

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

     

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
09

19
  (

25
22

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 9

, 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocboeminutes_091619 (PDF) 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 114



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  
Camden County Board of Education 

Joint Meeting 
 September 16, 2019; 6:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 
 

Call to Order 
A joint meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners and Camden County Board of 
Education was called to order by the respective Chairmen on September 16, 2019 at 6:00 PM at 
the Camden County Public Library.  The primary purpose of the meeting was to hear and discuss 
the results of the School Facility Study conducted by MB Kahn Construction, Inc. 
 
Board Members Present 
Board of Commissioners: Chairman Tom White, Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners 
Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak, and Ross Munro. 
 
Camden County Board of Education: Chairman Christian Overton, Vice Chairman Jason Banks, 
Board Members Kevin Heath and Sissy Aydlett.  Absent: Chris Purcell. 
 
County Manager Ken Bowman, School Superintendent Dr. Joe Ferrell and Clerk to the Board 
Karen Davis were present as well as additional school faculty/staff and members of the 
community. 
 
Consideration of the Agenda 
Camden County Board of Education - A motion was offered by Sissy Aydlett and seconded by 
Kevin Heath to approve the agenda as presented.  The motion carried unanimously with four 
members voting aye and no members voting no.   
 
Camden County Board of Commissioners – The agenda for the Board of Commissioners was 
amended to add Resolution 2019-09-02.  A motion was offered by Clayton Riggs to approve the 
agenda as amended.  The motion carried unanimously with five members voting aye and no 
members voting no. 
 
Opening Remarks 
County Manager Ken Bowman and School Superintendent Dr. Joe Ferrell offered brief opening 
remarks and introduced Rick Ott of MB Kahn Construction.   
 
Presentation 
Rick Ott of MB Kahn Construction included the following in his presentation on the results of 
the School Facility Study: 
 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

09
16

19
  (

25
34

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 1

6,
 2

01
9)



 

 

 Current Schools 

 High School & Early College (Grades 9-12) – Enrollment 611 
 Over capacity 
 Limited space for additions 

 Middle School (Grades 7-8) – Enrollment 306 
 At capacity 
 Limited space for additions 

 Intermediate School (Grades 4-6) – Enrollment 415 
 At capacity 
 Limited space for additions 

 Primary School (Grades K-3) – Enrollment 503 
 At capacity 
 Limited space for additions 

 
Impact of Development: County Growth 

 10 years - +236 students 

 20 years - +468 students 

 30% in the northern part of the county (new school), 70% distributed throughout 
existing schools 

 
Options       Estimated Cost  
Option 1       $46M - 48M 

 New School (K-3) with Land Purchase   

 New CATE 

 Athletics relocated to 60-acre property 

 New addition at Middle and High Schools 
Option 2       $55M - $57M 

 Future School (K-3) Land Purchase    

 New High School (9-12) 

 New Athletics 

 New addition at MS 
*Portion of existing HS available for County use 

 Option 3       $53M - $55M 

 Future School (K-3) Land Purchase 

 New High School (9-12) 

 New Athletics 
*Existing MS building available for County use  
 
 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

09
16

19
  (

25
34

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 1

6,
 2

01
9)



 

 

 Option 4       $36M - $38M 

 Future School (K-3) Land Purchase 

 New High School (10-12) 

 Use Existing Athletics 
Option 5       $45M - $47M 

 Future School (K-3) Land Purchase 

 New High School (9-12) 

 Use Existing Athletics 
*Existing MS building available for County use 

 
At the conclusion of the presentation next steps were discussed by members of both boards.  If a 
bond referendum is to be placed on the ballot in 2020 for the construction of a new school it 
must be submitted to Board of Elections by December 20, 2019.  The decision was made to hold 
another joint meeting to take place on October 10, 2019 at 6:00 PM in the Camden County High 
School Media Center.   
 
There being no further matters for discussion for the Camden County Board of Education, 
Chairman Overton called for a motion to adjourn.  A motion was offered by Kevin Heath and 
seconded by Jason Banks to adjourn.  The motion carried unanimously with four members 
voting aye and no member voting no.  The Camden County Board of Education adjourned its 
meeting at 7:17 PM. 
 
Camden County Board of Commissioners - Resolution 2019-09-02 Naming Interim Finance 
Officer 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

09
16

19
  (

25
34

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 1

6,
 2

01
9)



 

 

A motion was offered by Clayton Riggs to adopt Resolution 2019-09-02 naming Stephanie 
Jackson as Interim Finance Officer effective October 1, 2019.  The motion carried unanimously 
with five members voting aye and no members voting no.   
 
There being no further matters for discussion for the Camden County Board of Commissioners, 
Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn.  Garry Meiggs offered a motion to adjourn.  The 
motion carried unanimously with five members voting aye and no members voting no.  
Chairman White adjourned the meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 7:30 PM. 
 
 
             
      Tom White, Chairman 
      Camden County Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Karen M. Davis 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

09
16

19
  (

25
34

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 1

6,
 2

01
9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendment 

 

Attachments: Budget Amendment (PDF) 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 119



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

25
23

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 121



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

25
21

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20191001110742077.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:    Review and Approve 

8.E

Packet Pg. 123



8.E.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
91

00
11

10
74

20
77

.p
d

f 
 (

25
35

 :
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190909105722041.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report  November, 19 Renewals due 12/15/2019   

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.F

Packet Pg. 125



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

90
91

05
72

20
41

.p
d

f 
 (

25
05

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

Attachments: Vehicle Refunds (PDF) 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 127



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
 (

25
33

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

 -
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Amy Barnett, Planning Clerk 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20191001110733636.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00  September, 2019  

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.H

Packet Pg. 129



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
91

00
11

10
73

36
36

.p
d

f 
 (

25
36

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.I 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

8.I

Packet Pg. 131



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
25

37
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.J 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Records Retention and Disposition Schedule 

 

Attachments: 2019 Records Retention and Disposition Schedule

 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

The updated Records Retention and Disposition Schedule for Local Government 

Agencies was issued on March 1, 2019 by the NC Department of Natural and Cultural 

Resources, Division of Archives and Records, Government Records Section.   

 

The General Records Schedule can be viewed at the following link and a copy is 

available for review in the clerk's office. 

https://files.nc.gov/dncr-archives/documents/files/2019_local_standards_0.pdf 

 

Recommendation: 

Review and approve the Local Government Records Retention Schedules as issued by 

the State Archives of North Carolina. 

8.J

Packet Pg. 133



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9 

R
ec

o
rd

s 
R

et
en

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 D
is

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 S
ch

ed
u

le
  (

25
24

 :
 R

ec
o

rd
s 

R
et

en
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 D

is
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 S

ch
ed

u
le

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.K 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Human Resources 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Surplus Property Request - Human Resources 

 

Attachments: Surplus Property - Human Resources (PDF) 

 

8.K

Packet Pg. 135



8.K.a

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 -

 H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

  (
25

18
 :

 S
u

rp
lu

s 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.L 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Senior Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20 

 

Attachments: Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20

 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

State appropriation for Senior Centers through the 2019 Session of the NC General Assembly - 

Senior Center General Purpose Funding; Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Application 

Recommendation: 

Review and approve. 

8.L

Packet Pg. 137



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
09

 :
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.M 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-08-02 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-08-02

 (DOC) 

Reasons for UDO amendments (DOCX) 

Ordinance 2019-08-02 Revised after PB 9-18-19

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Agenda summary attached. 

8.M

Packet Pg. 152



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   October 7, 2019 
 

Attachments:   Ordinance/Findings/Planning Board  

   Recommendation 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Hearing Ordinance 2019-08-02; 
Proposed Amendments to Unified 
Development Ordinance 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

After six (6) months of operating with the new Unified Development Ordinance, 
staff has identified a few issues that need minor changes, clarification, or 
reconsideration.  The attached ordinance is a compilation of excerpts from 
various chapters with the changes numbered and highlighted.  Also attached is a 
brief explanation with reasons for recommended changes. 
 
The Planning Board reviewed and discussed each item and made one motion 
recommending approving of all the changes.  It should be noted that there was 
considerable discussion on Reason #9 regarding subdivision along major arterial 
highways.  Also while the Board recommends proceeding with approval of the 
Reasons # 5 & 7 related to manufactured housing, the discussion expanded to 
additional location issues and will be further considered at the next meeting. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Set public hearing for November 4, 2019. 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 
R. Munro        ____ 
ABSENT         ____ 
RECUSED      ____ 
 

8.M.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

08
-0

2 
 (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



Reasons for UDO amendments 

 

1. Article 2.3.10 (Expedited Subdivisions) Para C.4.a.8 - To clarify and be consistent with 

General Statutes that allow expedited subdivisions without NCDOT roads 

2. Article 2.3.20 (Preliminary Plat) Para C.8 and F.1 - To specify that a construction permit is 

one of the steps required before beginning any ground disturbing work.  This assures final 

review of the specific details of infrastructure improvements from all agencies. 

3. Article 3.5.3 – (Rural Residential (RR) District) Para N and Note 6   - This requirement 

applied across the board makes some existing lots unbuildable and for new lots it duplicates 

the farmland compatibility buffer of 50 ft.. 

4. Article 3.5.4 – Suburban Residential (SR) District) Para N and Note 6 – Same reason as 

Note 3 above.   

5. Article 4.3.10 (Principal Use Table) Mobile Home -  This classifies any manufactured 

housing built before 1976 to be a mobile home and prohibits them in the county except if 

exiting occupied units. 

6. Article 4.3.10 (Principal Use Table) Educational Facilities - Adds a specific type of use – 

private specialty classes – that is not included in the table of permitted uses. 

7. Article 4.4.2 (Residential Uses) Para D.1.o and Para E.1.h - Prohibits manufactured housing 

within 1 mile of villages boundaries regardless of zoning district. 

8. Article 5.14.11 (Sign Standards in Commercial Districts) - Increases wall sign coverage to 

that which was recommended by staff and agreed to but not included in final vote on 

changes. (due to tunnel vision about pole signs) 

9. Article 6.1.5 (Access to Lots) - As written the current language would not allow creation of 

any new lots with curb cuts along these roads. 

10. Article 10.3 (Definitions) - Based on #9 above it is likely to result in short cul-de-sacs with 

minor subdivision. The presence of the cul-de-sacs would be a road extension and flip the 

project to the major subdivision definition and process.  Also the change would allow and 

possibly encourage creation of less linear minor subdivisions on cul-de-sacs reducing curb 

cuts on any roads. 

 

8.M.b

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

U
D

O
 a

m
en

d
m

en
ts

  (
25

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

08
-0

2)



Ordinance No. 2019-08-02 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County 

Unified Development Ordinance 

 

Camden County, North Carolina 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 

follows: 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Camden County Unified Development Ordinance 

of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners 

on December 15, 1997 and subsequently revised on February 4, 2019. 

  

Article II. Construction 

 

For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 

additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 

considered deletions to existing language.  New language of proposed ordinance shall be 

shown in italics (italics) and underlined.  Additionally, all changes to ordinance language 

shall be highlighted bright yellow. 

 

Article III. Amend Chapter 151 as amended of the Unified Development which shall 

read as follows: 

 
 CHAPTER 151:  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
 

2.3.10 EXPEDITED SUBDIVISION 

 

C. Expedited Subdivision Procedure 

4. Review Standards 

a. An expedited subdivision shall be approved if the application complies with 

the following: 

1. The expedited subdivision plat is on a sheet or sheets suitable for 

recording with the Camden County Register of Deeds; 

2. The expedited subdivision plat is prepared and sealed by a licensed 

professional land surveyor or licensed professional engineer; 

3. The expedited subdivision plat complies with all applicable 

standards in this Ordinance and Section 47-30 of the North Carolina 

General Statutes; 

4. The expedited subdivision plat includes all required certifications;  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



5. The applicant has secured all required State and federal permit 

approvals; 

6. All lots have been certified by Albemarle Regional Health Services 

(ARHS) as capable of accommodating the wastewater generated 

from the proposed use, in cases when the lot(s) is not served by a 

centralized wastewater system; 

7. All lots in the expedited subdivision comply with the applicable 

dimensional requirements for the zoning district where located; 

8. The lot is served by a NCDOT-maintained roadway, or a right-of-

way constructed to and maintained in accordance with NCDOT 

standards, or a minimum 45’ easement; and 

9. No land included in an expedited subdivision application shall have 

been the subject of an expedited subdivision application approval 

within the preceding ten years. 

 

2.3.20 PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 

A. Purpose and Intent  

1. The purpose for the preliminary plat procedure is to establish a fair, consistent, and 

predictable procedure for the review of requests to divide land into a series of lots 

for development or sale in ways that promote the health, safety, and welfare of the 

citizens of Camden County.  The intent of these standards is to ensure: 

2. Orderly growth and development; 

3. Coordination of transportation and utility networks; 

4. Coordination between capital improvement expenditures and the location of 

development; 

5. Preservation of open space for purposes of recreation or natural resource protection; 

6. Protection from flooding, damaging sedimentation, and decreased surface water 

quality; and  

7. Distribution of population in ways that supports infrastructure investment and 

diminishes the impact of traffic and overcrowding. 

B. Applicability 

Divisions of land that do not qualify as an exempt subdivision (see Section, 2.3.9, 

Exempt Subdivision), expedited subdivision (see Section 2.3.10, Expedited 

Subdivision), minor subdivision (see Section 2.3.18, Minor Subdivision), or transfer 

plat (see Section 2.3.24, Transfer Plat) shall be reviewed and decided as a preliminary 

plat in accordance with these standards. Figure 2.3.20.B: Preliminary Plat, shows a 

typical hypothetical preliminary plat.  

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



C. Preliminary Plat Review Procedure 

1. Pre-Application Conference 

a. Applicable (see Section 2.2.2, Pre-Application Conference). 

b. Except for subdivisions where all lots shall be served by a central 

wastewater system, applications for an preliminary 

plat shall include an evaluation from Albemarle 

Regional Health Services indicating that an on-site 

wastewater system may be used on each lot included 

in the subdivision. 

2. Neighborhood Meeting 

Applicable (see Section 2.2.3, Neighborhood 

Meeting). 

3. Application Submittal 

a. Applicable (see Section 2.2.4, Application 

Submittal). 

b. A preliminary plat shall be prepared by a licensed 

professional surveyor, registered professional 

landscape architect, or licensed professional 

engineer. 

c. A preliminary plat application shall include either a 

conceptual or final stormwater management plan 

prepared in accordance with the standards in Section 

7.1, Stormwater Management. 

d. Concurrent submittal of a preliminary plat 

application and a final plat application is prohibited 

except in cases where there are no extensions of 

public right-of-way or public utilities. 

e. In cases where a preliminary plat is part of a larger 

phased development, the application materials shall 

illustrate all various stages and phases of the 

development as well as the schedule for completion 

of public and private improvements associated with 

the development. 

4. Staff Review and Action 

a. Applicable (see Section 2.2.5, Staff Review and 

Action). 

b. The UDO Administrator shall review the application 

and may submit it to the Technical Review 

Committee, as appropriate, for further technical 

review.   

c. The UDO Administrator shall prepare a staff report 

and The UDO Administrator shall prepare a staff 

report and provide a recommendation in accordance with Section 2.3.20.D, 

Preliminary Plat Review Standards.  

  

Installation of Improvements

Construction Permit Issuance

Obtain State and Federal 
Approvals

File Final Stormwater Plan

Board of Commissioners 
Review and Decision

Public Notification

Public Hearing Scheduled

Planning Board Review and 
Recommendation

Review by the TRC, as 
appropriate

Completeness Determination

Submit Application

Neighborhood Meeting

Pre-Application Conference

FIGURE 2.3.20.C: 
PRELIMINARY PLAT 

PROCEDURE

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



5. Review by Planning Board 

a. Applicable (see Section 2.2.8, Review by Planning Board, and Section 

2.2.7, Public Meetings and Hearings). 

b. The Planning Board, following review during a public meeting, shall make 

a recommendation on an application in accordance with Section 2.3.20.D, 

Preliminary Plat Review Standards. 

 

D. FIGURE 2.3.20.B: PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 

 

6. Public Notice 

Applicable (see Section 2.2.6, Public Notice). 

7. Review and Decision by Board of Commissioners 

a. Applicable (see Section 2.2.9, Action by Review Authority).   

b. The Board of Commissioners, after the conclusion of a legislative public 

hearing, shall review and decide the application in accordance with Section 

2.3.20.D, Preliminary Plat Review Standards.  The decision shall be the one 

of the following: 

1. Approval of the preliminary plat as proposed; 

2. Approval of a revised preliminary plat; or 

3. Denial of the preliminary plat. 

8. Approval to Proceed  

Following approval of a preliminary plat by the Board of Commissioners, 

approval of the final stormwater plan, and issuance of all required state and 

federal approvals, the applicant may proceed with an application for a fill 

permit Construction Permit, to undertake land disturbing activities, or for a 

building permit to install public utilities in cases where no fill permit is 

required.  Final plats shall be reviewed and decided by the UDO 

Administrator in accordance with Section 2.3.12, Final Plat. 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



D. Preliminary Plat Review Standards 

1. An application for a preliminary plat shall be approved, provided: 

a. The preliminary plat is prepared and sealed by a licensed professional land 

surveyor, registered professional landscape architect, or licensed 

professional engineer; 

b. The preliminary plat complies with the applicable standards in Section 47-

30 of the North Carolina General Statutes; 

c. The preliminary plat includes all required certifications; 

d. All lots have been certified by Albemarle Regional Health Services as 

capable of accommodating the wastewater generated from the proposed use, 

in cases when the lot(s) is not served by a centralized wastewater system; 

e. The preliminary plat is in substantial conformance with all applicable 

requirements in ARTICLE 151.6, Subdivision Requirements; 

f. The preliminary plat complies with all standards and conditions of any 

applicable permits and development approvals;  

g. All lots shall be served by a NCDOT-maintained roadway or a right-of-way 

constructed to and maintained in accordance with NCDOT standards; 

h. The name of the subdivision shall not duplicate or be similar to the name of 

an existing subdivision in Camden County or Pasquotank County; 

i. In cases where land subject to a preliminary plat is located within an AEC, 

approved preliminary plats shall bear a certification from the NC Division 

of Coastal Management certifying compliance with all AEC requirements; 

and 

j. The preliminary plat complies with all other applicable requirements in this 

Ordinance and the County Code of Ordinances. 

2. Preliminary plats of land located within the special flood hazard area shall comply 

with the standards in Section 3.8.3, Special Flood Hazard Area Overlay (SFHA), 

and include the following statement: 

“Use of land within a floodplain or a special flood hazard area is 

substantially restricted by Camden County.” 

3. If the preliminary plat is required to provide a connection to a public water supply 

system, the plat shall include the following statement: 

“The developer is required to install all water lines and related 

improvements.” 

E. Conditions of Approval 

Applicable (see Section 2.2.10, Conditions of Approval). 

F. Effect 

1. Approval of a preliminary plat authorizes an applicant to file for all required State 

and federal permits as well as submittal of final stormwater plans, construction 

drawings, a fill permit Construction Permit, and/or a final plat. 

2. Approval of a preliminary plat shall not constitute the approval for recording a 

subdivision with the Camden County Register of Deeds, or approval for the 

conveyance of lots. 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



G. Amendment 

Applicable (see Section 2.2.16, Amendment). 

H. Expiration 

1. Generally 

An approved preliminary plat shall be valid for two years from the date of approval. 

2. Extension 

a. An applicant may request an extension of a preliminary plat approval in 

writing to the UDO Administrator at least 30 days prior to expiration. 

b. Extension requests shall be reviewed and decided by the Board of 

Commissioners. 

c. A preliminary plat may be extended once for a maximum duration of one 

year. 

I. Appeal 

1. Appeal of a decision on a preliminary plat shall be subject to review by the District 

1 Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of certiorari and in accordance with 

Section 160A-393 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

2. Petitions for review must be filed with the Clerk of Court within 30 days of the date 

the decision is filed in the office of the appropriate review authority and delivered 

by personal delivery, electronic mail, or first-class mail to the applicant, landowner, 

and to any person who has submitted a written request for a copy, prior to the date 

the decision becomes effective. 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



Article 3.5.3 – Rural Residential (RR) District 

 

RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) DISTRICT 

RR 

Rural 

Residential 

Purpose Statement 

The Rural Residential (RR) district is established to accommodate 
low density residential neighborhoods and supporting uses on lots 
near bona fide farms and agricultural areas in the rural portion of 
the County.  The district is intended to accommodate residential 
development in ways that will not interfere with agricultural activity 
or negatively impact the rural character of the County. One of the 
primary tools for character protection is the requirement to 
configure residential subdivisions of more than five lots as 
conservation subdivisions.  The conservation subdivision approach 
seeks to minimize the visibility of new residential development from 
adjacent roadways through proper placement and screening.  The 
district accommodates several differing agricultural uses  and 
single-family detached homes.  It also allows supporting uses like 
educational facilities, parks, public safety facilities, and utilities.  
District regulations discourage uses that interfere with the 
development of residential dwellings or that are detrimental to the 
rural nature of the district. 

Dimensional Requirements 

# STANDARD TYPE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR 

TRADITIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONSERVATION 

SUBDIVISIONS [1] 

A Minimum Development Size (acres) N/A 10 

B Maximum Residential Density (units/acre) 0.5 1 

C Minimum Lot Area (acres) 2 1 

D Minimum Lot Width (feet) [2] 125 60 

E Maximum Lot Coverage (% of lot area) [3] 24 72 

F Minimum Open Space (% of development size) [4] None 50 

G Minimum Front Setback (feet) 50 20 

H Minimum Corner Side Setback (feet) 50 20 

I Minimum Interior Side Setback (feet) 25 10 

J Minimum Rear Setback (feet) 25 15 

K Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Front-to-Back (feet) [5] 20 10 

L Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Side-to-Side (feet) [5] 15 5 

M Minimum Accessory Building Setback (feet) 10 3 

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



N Minimum Setback from Agricultural Activity (feet) [6] 50 50 

O Maximum Building Height (feet) 35 [7] 35 

NOTES: 

[1] Residential developments of five or more lots shall be configured as a conservation subdivision in 

accordance with the standards in Section 6.5, Conservation Subdivision. 

[2] Lots on a cul-de-sac street shall maintain a minimum frontage of 35 feet and shall maintain 80 

percent of the required minimum lot width at a point located 50 feet from the street right-of-way edge. 

[3] The maximum lot coverage may be increased with approval from NCDEQ and compliance with all 

applicable stormwater management requirements. 

[4] Applied to residential subdivisions and nonresidential developments.  

[5] Applied in cases where there are two or more principal buildings on the same lot. 

[6] Setback is applied from the perimeter of agricultural activity occurring on the same or an adjacent 

lot. 

[7] Maximum building height may be increased to 50 feet for agricultural or agricultural-related uses. 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



3.5.4 – Suburban Residential 

 

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL (SR) DISTRICT 

SR 

Suburban 

Residential 

Purpose Statement 

The Suburban Residential (SR) district is the County’s primary 
district for suburban residential neighborhoods located along 
primary roadways, shoreline areas, and in locations bordering 
rural areas.  The district has a one-acre minimum lot area 
requirement, which is the basic threshold size for lots with on-
site wastewater systems.  Use of the conservation subdivision 
configuration is optional for residential subdivisions.  While the 
district allows single-family detached homes, mobile homes on 
individual lots are prohibited. Nonconforming mobile homes 
may remain but may not be expanded or replaced with another 
mobile home. The district accommodates equestrian uses, 
utilities, as well as various neighborhood-supporting 
institutional uses such as parks, schools, and public safety 
facilities.  District regulations discourage uses that interfere 
with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are 
detrimental to the suburban nature of the district. 

Dimensional Requirements 

# STANDARD TYPE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR 

TRADITIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONSERVATION 

SUBDIVISIONS 

A Minimum Development Size (acres) N/A 10 

B Maximum Residential Density (units/acre) 1 2 

C Minimum Lot Area (acres) 1 0.5 

D Minimum Lot Width (feet) [2] 125 60 

E Maximum Lot Coverage (% of lot area) [3] 24 72 

F Minimum Open Space (% of development size) [4] None 50 

G Minimum Front Setback (feet) 25 20 

H Minimum Corner Side Setback (feet) 25 20 

I Minimum Interior Side Setback (feet) 10 10 

J Minimum Rear Setback (feet) 10 10 

K Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Front-to-Back (feet) [5] 15 10 

L Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Side-to-Side (feet) [5] 10 5 

M Minimum Accessory Building Setback (feet) 10 3 

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



N Minimum Setback from Agricultural Activity (feet) [6] 50 50 

O Maximum Building Height (feet) 35 35 

NOTES: 

[1] Residential developments of five or more lots may be configured as a conservation subdivision in 

accordance with the standards in Section 6.5, Conservation Subdivision. 

[2] Lots on a cul-de-sac street shall maintain a minimum frontage of 35 feet and shall maintain 80 

percent of the required minimum lot width at a point located 50 feet from the street right-of-way edge. 

[3] The maximum lot coverage may be increased with approval from NCDEQ and compliance with all 

applicable stormwater management requirements. 

[4] Applied to residential subdivisions and nonresidential developments. 

[5] Applied in cases where there are two or more principal buildings on the same lot. 

[6] Setback is applied from the perimeter of agricultural activity occurring on the same or an adjacent 

lot. 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



4.3.10 PRINCIPAL USE TABLE 

TABLE 4.3.10: PRINCIPAL USE TABLE 

“P”= Permitted        “S”= Permitted with Special Use Permit       “·”= Prohibited 

USE CATEGORY 
Use Type 

Description 
 

 RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND.  

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 (

1
5
1
.4

) 

C
P

 

W
L

 

R
R

 

S
R

 

N
R

 

V
R

 

C
C

 

V
C

 

M
X

 

H
C

 

M
C

 

L
I 

H
I 

P
D

 

  

Manufactured Home 

A dwelling on its own lot constructed after 
June 15, 1976 that is composed of one or 
more components, each of which was 
substantially assembled in a manufacturing 
plant and designed to be transported on its 
own chassis.  It bears a valid seal indicating 
conformance with the construction 
standards promulgated by the US 
Department of Housing and Urban 
Development that were in effect at the time 
of its construction. 

· P · · P · · · · · · · · A 4.4.2.D 

Manufactured Home or Mobile Home 
Park 

A site where two or more manufactured or 
mobile homes are located on individual 
leaseholds or other divisions of land under 
common ownership.  The park may include 
additional accessory uses such as 
recreation facilities, shared laundry facilities, 
storage, and parking. 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

Mobile Home 

A factory-built dwelling on its own lot 
constructed prior to June 15, 1976, to State 
code standards, not those adopted by the 
US Department of Housing and 
Development on June 15, 1976. 

· · S · · · · · · · · · · · 4.4.2.E 

Multi-Family  

A dwelling comprised of five or more 
dwelling units that share common vertical 
walls or horizontal floors/ceilings (or both) 
that are not on individual lots.  Examples 
include apartments and condominiums. 

· · · · · · · S P S S · · A 4.4.2.F 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES 
The Educational Facilities Use Category includes use types such as public and private schools at the elementary, 
middle, or high school level that provide state-mandated basic education or a comparable equivalent.  This use 
category also includes colleges, universities, and other institutions of higher learning such as vocational or trade 
schools that offer courses of general or specialized study leading to a degree or certification.  Accessory uses at 
schools include offices, play areas, cafeterias, recreational and sport facilities, auditoriums, and before- or after-
school day care.  Accessory uses at colleges or universities include offices, dormitories, food service, laboratories, 
health and sports facilities, theaters, meeting areas, athletic fields, parking, maintenance facilities, and supporting 
commercial. Uses also include studio’s (such as dance, martial arts, etc.). 

Major 

A public or private institution for post-
secondary education operating in buildings 
owned or leased by the institution and 
engaged in classroom instruction, residential 
units, administrative offices, and other 
functions which further the educational 
mission of the institution. 

· · · · · · S S S S S S · A 4.4.3.B 

Moderate 

An educational institution that provides 
secondary education such as a high school 
or a middle school. Accessory uses may 
include offices, play areas, cafeterias, sports 
facilities, and bus parking areas. 

· S · · · S P P P P S · · A  

Minor 

An educational institution that provides 
elementary education such as an 
elementary or nursery school as well as a 
small-scale secondary education facility 
limited to 75 students or less. Accessory 
uses may include offices, play areas, 
cafeterias, sports facilities, and bus parking 
areas. 

· P S S P P P P P P S · · A  

 

Article 4.4.2 – Residential Uses 

D. Manufactured Homes 

1. Standards Applied to All Manufactured Homes 

New manufactured homes shall comply with the following standards: 

a. It shall be located on an individual lot; 

b. It shall be occupied only as a single family dwelling; 

c. It shall be set up in accordance with the standards established by the North 

Carolina Department of Insurance and the most current version of the State of 

North Carolina Regulations for Manufactured/Mobile Homes; 

d. It shall comply with the latest wind loading requirements for Camden County; 

e. It shall maintain a minimum width of 16 feet; 

f. It shall be oriented with the longest axis parallel to the lot frontage, to the 

maximum extent practicable; 

g. Towing apparatus, wheels, axles, and transporting lights shall be removed; 

h. It shall include a continuous, permanent masonry foundation or masonry curtain 

wall of solid brick or brick veneer, unpierced except for required ventilation 

and access, installed under the perimeter; 

i. It shall include stairs, entrance platforms, ramps, or other means of entrance and 

exit that are installed or constructed in accordance with the standards set by the 

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



State Building Code. They shall be attached firmly to the primary structure and 

anchored securely to the ground; 

j. It shall maintain exterior siding comparable in composition, appearance, and 

durability to the exterior siding commonly used in standard residential 

construction, which consists of one or more of the following: 

1. Vinyl or aluminum lap siding (whose reflectivity does not exceed that 

of flat white paint); 

2. Cedar or other wood siding; 

3. Stucco siding; 

4. Brick or stone siding; 

k. It shall maintain a roof pitch with a minimum vertical rise of 3 feet for each 12 

feet of horizontal run; 

l. It shall include a roof finished with a Class C or better roofing material that is 

commonly used in standard residential construction;  

m. It shall provide an eave projection of no less than 6 inches, which may include 

a gutter;  

n. It shall comply with all applicable standards in Section 3.8.3, Special Flood 

Hazard Area Overlay (SFHA) when located in a floodplain or other area subject 

to the flood damage protection standards in this Ordinance; and 

o. Manufactured homes are not permitted within the NR district on lots located 

within 5,280 linear feet from the perimeter boundary of a village center or 

within a village center designated in the County’s adopted policy guidance. 
 

E. Mobile Homes 

1. General 

A mobile home shall comply with the following standards: 

a. No mobile home may be parked for storage on any lot, tract, or parcel, except in 

HC, LI, or HI districts, or in a lawfully-established mobile home storage site subject 

to a temporary storage permit issued by the UDO Administrator. 

b. A storage site for a mobile home shall be completely surrounded by a visually 

opaque wall or fence of at least eight feet in height. 

c. Except for lawfully-established mobile home sales uses, no mobile home may be 

stored in any district for more than three months. 

d. Mobile homes may not be used as storage structures. 

e. Except for mobile homes being temporarily stored, a mobile home shall be 

anchored and tied down or otherwise secured according to the manufacturer's 

standards of the State Department of Insurance, and all applicable requirements of 

this Ordinance. 

f. No attached structures shall be permitted which exceed 100 square feet nor may the 

total of all accessory buildings in individual ownership exceed 100 square feet per 

mobile home unit. 

g. Two or more mobile homes shall not be joined or connected together as one 

dwelling nor may a mobile home be attached to any accessory building. 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



h. Mobile homes are not permitted within the RR district on lots located within 5,280 

linear feet from the perimeter boundary of a village center designated in the 

County’s adopted policy guidance.  Existing Mobile homes located within the 

County can only be re-located into a valid Mobile Home Park.  Mobile homes 

located outside the County are prohibited from being relocated into Camden 

County.  

 

5.14.11 SIGN STANDARDS IN COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS 
Signs on lots in the commercial districts other than the MX district shall comply with the requirements in Table 5.14.11: 
Sign Standards in Commercial Districts. 
 

TABLE 5.14.11: SIGN STANDARDS IN COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 

TYPE OF SIGN 
MAXIMUM FACE AREA 

[1] [2] 
MAXIMUM HEIGHT 

MAXIMUM NUMBER 

OF SIGNS PER LOT 
ADDITIONAL 

STANDARDS [3] 

Wall Sign on Front 

Façade 

Greater of: 1.5 sf per 
linear foot of wall 
frontage, or 5% of 

wall area 

Below the top of the 
roof, soffit, eave or 
parapet, whichever 

is highest 

No limit 

Wall signs shall not 
project more than 

12 inches outwards 
from the wall 

Wall Sign on Side or 

Rear Façade fronting 
a street 

½ sf per liner foot of 
wall frontage 

  

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



6.1.5  ACCESS TO LOTS 

 

A. Every Lot Must Maintain Access 

1. Generally 

Except for lots within bona fide farms, lots created in accordance with Section 

2.3.24, Transfer Plat, or lots created through an expedited subdivision (see 

Section 2.3.10, Expedited Subdivision), all lots intended to contain a building or 

structure shall abut a street designed, built, and maintained to state road standards, 

including minimum density standards. 

2. Lots in Bona Fide Farms, Transfer Plats, Exempt Subdivisions, or Expedited 

Subdivisions 

a. Lots established after February 4, 2019 in a bona fide farm, transfer plat, 

exempt subdivision, or expedited subdivision that are not required to abut a 

street designed, built, and maintained to state road standards, including 

density, but shall maintain some form of access with a minimum width of 45 

feet and maintained to afford a reasonable means of ingress and egress for 

emergency vehicles. 

b. Accessways not built to state standards may serve a maximum of up to three 

lots.  Accessways serving more than three lots shall be designed, built, and 

maintained to state road standards. 

B. Access on Lots Abutting Major Arterial Streets 

1. The standards in this subsection shall apply to lots abutting the following arterial 

streets: 

a. US 17; 

b. US 158; 

c. NC 34; and 

d. NC 343. 

2. In cases where a tract or site abutting a listed major arterial street is proposed for 

a subdivision (whether residential or otherwise), in the creation of 3 or more lots 

including residual, then all lots created shall maintain sufficient frontage on a 

different street, either pre-existing or created as part of the subdivision, so that 

direct access to lots need not be provided by a listed major arterial street. 

3. The final plat creating the subdivision shall indicate a notation that driveway 

access to a major arterial or minor collector street is limited and shall be provided 

by a different street. 

4. In the event a site or tract is unable to comply with the access limitations in this 

subsection, an applicant may seek a variance in accordance with Section 2.3.26, 

Variance. 

  

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



C. Marginal Access Streets 

1. Where a tract of land to be subdivided adjoins an arterial street, the subdivider 

may be required to provide a marginal access street parallel to the arterial street or 

reverse frontage on a minor street for the lots to be developed adjacent to the 

arterial street. 

2. Where reverse frontage is established, private driveways shall not have direct 

access to the arterial street, and a 25-foot-wide non-access buffer zone on the side 

of the lot abutting the arterial street shall be provided. 

3. A ten-foot-wide non-access buffer zone may be approved if the vegetation creates 

a year-round opaque screen or a six-foot-tall opaque fence is provided. 

4. The non-access buffer zone may be counted toward the open space set-aside 

requirement or may be counted as a portion of each individual lot. 

 

10.3 DEFINITIONS 

 

 

SUBDIVISION, 

MAJOR 

A subdivision of land that includes the creation of five or more lots. 

.(including the residual parcel) or that involves extension of public 

streets, public water, public sewer, or other public utility.  

SUBDIVISION, 

MINOR 

A subdivision of land that includes up to five lots (including the residual 

parcel) with no extension of public streets, public water, public sewer, or 

other public utility. 

 

 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this      day of             , 2019. 

 

 

 County of Camden 

 

 

 

    

 Tom White, Chairman 

 Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

   [SEAL] 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

8.M.c

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2 

R
ev

is
ed

 a
ft

er
 P

B
 9

-1
8-

19
  (

25
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
08

-0
2)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.N 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-10-01 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-10-01 - 

Sawyer (DOC) 

Sawyer Rezoning Findings (DOCX) 

Supporting Documents (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary attached. 

8.N

Packet Pg. 171



            

      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   October 7, 2019 

Attachments:   Ordinance/Findings/Planning Board  

   Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Hearing Ordinance 2019-10-01; 
Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-09-01) 
for Waverly Sawyer 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

Waverly Sawyer met with planning staff on rezoning of his properties at 872 North 343 (1 acre lot/office 

building) and 9 acres along North 343 of the 300 +/- acre farm from Working Lands (WL) to Highway 

Commercial (HC).  Mr. Sawyers building at 872 N. 343 is the office of Sawyer & Associates which is 

currently a legal non-conforming use as an office based on current zoning of Working Lands (WL).   He 

has been approached by an individual to lease his building for a retail sales business which is not a 

permissible use in the Working Lands (WL) zoning district.  Mr. Sawyer is requesting to rezone the 1 acre 

lot and an additional 9 acres (for future use) to Highway Commercial (HC). 

 

Neighborhood meeting was held September 16, 2019 in the upstairs Courtroom of the Historic Camden 

County Courthouse. (3 adjacent property owners present with no written comments taken). 

 

Mr. Sawyers request is consistent with Policies of the CAMA Plan but inconsistent with the Future Land 

Use Maps of both the CAMA and Comprehensive Plan.   Therefore the Planning 

Staff prepared statements and motions for either approval or denial. 

 

Planning Board met on September 18, 2019 and after discussion with applicant and staff Planning Board 

made the following motions: 

  

1. Consistency Statement: 

 
The proposed zoning change is consistent with policies P.22 and P.23 for commercial/industrial as Policies 

22 and 23 state “Camden County supports industrial development along major thoroughfares and that are 

accessible to water/sewer.  Sewer lines are adjacent to property, but are not active; and 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Plan (adopted April 4, 2005 as Future Land 

Use Map has property identified as Low Density Residential and Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Maps (adopted October 1, 2012) as map has property identified as Rural Preservation. 

 

Motion passed on a 4-0 vote. 

 

2.  Motion on Application for rezoning. 

 

Motion made to approve the rezoning application to rezone 10 acres from Working Lands (WL) to 

Highway Commercial (HC) as it is consistent with policies 22 and 23 as listed in the Advance Core CAMA 

Land Use Plan Executive Summary. 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 
R. Munro        ____ 
ABSENT         ____ 
RECUSED      ____ 
 

8.N.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

10
-0

1 
- 

S
aw

ye
r 

 (
25

12
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

10
-0

1)



Motion passed on a 4-0 vote.        

 

3.  Since approval of the rezoning results in a change to the Future Land Use Maps of the CAMA and 2035 

Comprehensive Plan – the General statutes require: 

 

Motion  

This action is deemed an amendment to the Future Land Use Maps of the Comprehensive 

Plan and CAMA Land Use Plan.  The changes in the community and benefits to Camden 

County that justify amending the zoning ordinance are __(State  specific reasons for 

decision 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Set public hearing for November 4, 2019. 

8.N.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

10
-0

1 
- 

S
aw

ye
r 

 (
25

12
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

10
-0

1)



` 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

UDO 2019-09-01 

 Zoning Map Amendment  
 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

 

File Reference:  UDO 2019-09-01 

Project Name; N/A 

PIN:     01-8907-00-43-8620/ 

                                                01-8907-00-65-3412 

Applicant:   Waverly Sawyer                                                                                      

Address:   117 Havenwood Dr. 

                                    Camden, NC 

 Phone:   (252) 202-2882 

 Email:     

 

Agent for Applicant:        

 Address:              

 Phone:      

 Email:     

Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 

 

Meeting Dates: 

 

9/16/2019                    Neighborhood       

9/18/2019                         Planning Board 

 

 Application Received: 9/4/2019 

By:  Dave Parks, Permit Officer 

 

Application Fee paid:  $650.00 Check #7219 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed 

C. GIS Aerial, Current zoning, Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use, CAMA Future Land 

Use and Suitability map, and Floodplain 

Maps 

D. Zoning Comparison WL and HC 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUEST:  Rezone approximately 10 acres (9 acres of farm and one ace of land where the office of 

Sawyer & Associates exists) at and adjacent to 872 N. 343 from Working Lands (WL) to Highway 

Commercial (HC). 

 

From:   Working Lands (WL) Article 151.3.5.2 (Purpose Statement) 

 

The Working Lands (WL) district is established to accommodate agriculture, agriculturally-related uses, 

and limited forms residential development at very low densities in rural portions of the County.  The 

district is primarily intended to preserve and protect bona fide farms and resource lands for current or 

future agricultural use as well as to protect the rural character of the area.  One of the primary tools for 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

character protection is the requirement to configure residential subdivisions of more than five lots as 

conservation subdivisions.  The conservation subdivision approach seeks to minimize the visibility of 

new residential development from adjacent roadways through proper placement and screening, and 

allows farmers to capture a portion of the land’s development potential while continuing to farm.  

Conservation subdivisions allow a portion of a tract or site to be developed with single-family detached 

homes while the balance of the site is left as conservation or agricultural land.  The district also 

accommodates a wide range of agricultural and agricultural-related uses like “agri-tourism” as well as 

service and support uses to the rural community, including day care, educational uses, public safety 

facilities, parks, and utility features. 

  

 

To:   Highway Commercial (HC) Mixed Use – Article 151.3.5.6 (Purpose Statement)  

 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., US 158, US 

17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for automobile-oriented commercial development as well as large 

floorplate commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic.  The district also accommodates 

agricultural and institutional uses as well as higher density residential uses with a special use permit. New 

development in the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral vehicular and pedestrian 

access along major transportation routes as a means of establishing a well-connected transportation 

system.  New development is configured to maintain high visual quality along the major roadway, or is 

fully screened from view.  Sufficient spacing and screening is included along lot lines shared with adjacent 

residential zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New commercial and multi-family developments in 

the district are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5:  

Development Standards.

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

 

 

PROJECT LOCATION:

 

Vicinity Map:  South Mills Township 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

 

 

SITE DATA 

 

 

Lot size:   One acre lot with existing business and 9 acres of an approximately 300                              

                                                acre tract.                          

Flood Zone:   X 

Zoning District(s):  Working Lands (WL) 

Existing Land Uses:  Existing Commercial Office building/farmland 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning  Working Lands 

(WL)/Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Working Lands 

(WL) 

 Working Lands  Working Lands 

(WL)  

Use & size Church/Housing Farmland  Farmland  Housing/Farmland 

 

Proposed Use(s):  Commercial.    

 

Description/History of property:   There is an existing Legal Non-conforming commercial office use 

on the one acre lot (Office of Sawyer and Associates) with the other 9 acres adjacent to it being in farm 

use. 

 

The existing office use has been in place for an estimated 20 years.   

Mr. Sawyer desires to use or lease the office to a tenant for use as a retail establishment which is not a 

permissible use with the existing zoning. 

      

 

ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 

 

Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:     
Distance & description of nearest outfall:    It appears the property drains to the south along  Highway 

343 to a culvert under Highway 343 which flows west out to the Pasquotank River.  Property located in 

the Watershed that address impervious surfaces and water quality. 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

 

 

CAMA Land Suitability: 

 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 
 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 

 
 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

Zoning Map: 

 

 
 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

 

Floodplain Map 

 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

 

 

 

 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

 

Water South Mills water lines are located adjacent to property along North 343. 

 

Sewer              Lines are adjacent but currently not in use. 

 

Fire District   South Mills Fire District. 

 

Schools   N/A.     

 

Traffic   Generation of traffic will be at development stage.  

 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.   

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the Future Land Use Maps has property identified as 

Low Density Residential.   
 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with policies P.22 and P.23 for commercial/industrial as 

Policies 22 and 23 state “Camden County supports industrial development along major thoroughfares 

and that are accessible to water/sewer. 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

   
The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012) Future Land 

Use Map as it shows the property designated as Rural Preservation.     
 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY – cont. 

 

 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 Property abuts Highway 343. 

 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 

 N/A 

 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

  

 

 

 

Will the proposed zoning change enhance the public health, safety or 

welfare? 

 

Reasoning:     If the 10 acre property were to be developed as a 

commercial center it could result in increased jobs and taxes for the 

county.. 

 

 

Is the entire range of  permitted uses in the requested classification 

more appropriate than the range of uses in the existing classification? 

 

Reasoning:   The range of uses in existing classification are more 

appropriate at this time.   

 

The 2035 Comprehensive  Plan overall strategy is to focus commercial 

growth in and around the village centers and maintain the rural character 

of the lands away from the villages.   

      

 

For proposals to re-zone to non-residential districts along major 

arterial roads:    

 

 

Is this an expansion of an adjacent zoning district of the same 

classification?    

 

Reasoning:     
 

 

What extraordinary showing of public need or demand is met 

by this application?  None at this time due to the location of 

property. 

 

Reasoning:  

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, 

or unusual disturbances? 

 

 

Reasoning:  There are uses permitted in the Highway Commercial zoning 

that could cause noise, odors, light, activity or increased traffic. 

 

 

Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental 

Concern? 

 

 

Reasoning:  Property is outside any CAMA Areas of Environmental 

Concern. 

 

 

 

Does the county need more land in the zoning class requested? 

 

 

Reasoning:    In the appropriate location in and around village centers. 

 

 

 

Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for 

the proposed uses? 

 

 

Reasoning:    Based on the location and surrounding uses the property is 

located too far out from where the county visions these types of uses at 

this time.    

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Will not exceed the county’s ability to provide public facilities: 

 

The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public facilities, how 

much and what facilities will be determined at the development of the 

property. 

 

Schools –     

 

Fire and Rescue –   

 

Law Enforcement –   

 

Parks & Recreation –   

 

Traffic Circulation or Parking –  

 

Other County Facilities –  

 

 

 

Is This A Small Scale “Spot” Rezoning Request Requiring Evaluation 

Of Community Benefits?

 

 

If Yes (regarding small scale spot rezoning) – Applicants Reasoning: 

 

 

 

 Personal Benefits/Impact Community Benefits/Impact 
 

With rezoning 

 

 

  
 

  

 

Without rezoning 

 

 

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

 

STAFF COMMENTARY:    

 

Planning Staff makes the following recommendations for either approval or denial: 

 

Approval: 

 

Consistency Statement: 

 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with policies P.22 and P.23 for commercial/industrial as 

Policies 22 and 23 state “Camden County supports industrial development along major thoroughfares 

and that are accessible to water/sewer.  Sewer lines are adjacent to property, but are not active. 

 

Application: 

 

Recommend approval of Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-09-01) for Waverly Sawyer to rezone 

parcels (10 acres total) from Working Lands (WL) to Highway Commercial (HC). 

 

Denial: 

 

Consistency Statement: 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Plan (adopted April 4, 2005 as Future Land 

Use Map has property identified as Low Density Residential and Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Maps as map has property identified as Rural Preservation. 

 

Application: 

 

Recommend denial of Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-09-01) for Waverly Sawyer to rezone parcels 

(10 acres total) from Working Lands (WL) to Highway Commercial (HC). 

 

Recommendation:  Staff would like to discuss with Planning Board at meeting.   

 

At the September 18, 2019 Planning Board meeting after discussion with applicant and staff, the 

following recommended motions were made: 

 

1. Consistency Statement: 

 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with policies P.22 and P.23 for commercial/industrial as 

Policies 22 and 23 state “Camden County supports industrial development along major thoroughfares 

and that are accessible to water/sewer.  Sewer lines are adjacent to property, but are not active; and 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Plan (adopted April 4, 2005 as Future Land 

Use Map has property identified as Low Density Residential and Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Maps as map has property identified as Rural Preservation. 

 

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



` 

Motion passed on a 4-0 vote. 

2.  Application for rezoning. 

 

Motion made to appove the rezoning application to rezone 10 acres from Working Lands (WL) to 

Highway Commercial (HC) as it is consistent with policies 22 and 23 as listed in the Advance Core 

CAMA Land Use Plan Executive Summary. 

 

Motion passed on a 4-0 vote.        

8.N.b

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

aw
ye

r 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



8.N.c

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
12

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
10

-0
1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 198



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

39
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

39
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Library Report 

 

Attachments: Library Report (DOCX) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 201



Camden County Public Library 

August 2019 Statistics 

 
 

Visitor Count 1,993 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,543 

Computer/ Wireless Use 749/652 

Questions Answered 470 

Juvenile Programs/Attendance 9/180 

Teen/Tween Programs/Attendance 1/3 

Adult Programs/Attendance 2/13 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 1/12 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 8/94 

Days/Hours Open 24/212 

# Items in Collection 18,415* 

Library Card Holders 2,459** 

*170 items were weeded from the collection 
**436 inactive patrons were removed from the database 

 

Comparison by Year 

2017-2019 

    

           

4,519
3,938

3,543

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Aug 2017 Aug 2018 Aug 2019

Circulation

2,241
1,892 1,993

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Aug 2017 Aug 2018 Aug 2019

Attendance

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

25
29

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.C 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   ABC Funds Report for FY 2018-2019 

 

Attachments: ABC Funds Report for FY 18-19 Camden (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Submitted by Bland Baker: Per GS 18B-805(h) since Trillium Health Resources received 

Alcoholism (ABC) Funds from your county, we are required to provide an annual report to the 

Board of County Commissioners describing how the funds were spent.  Please find attached a 

brief description of the expenditures that were paid from July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019.   

11.C

Packet Pg. 203



ABC Funds Report for FY 18-19 

County: Camden 

Amount of ABC Funds Received $_4,246.00 

ABC Funds Restrictions per County Allocation: None 

Per GS 18B-805(h) since Trillium Health Resources received Alcoholism (ABC) 

Funds from your county, we are required to provide an annual report to the 

board of county commissioners describing how the funds were spent. Please find 

below to a brief description of the expenditures that were paid from July 1, 2018 

to June 30, 2019. 

Purchase of Naloxone Kits: Trillium purchased and distributed in Camden County 

5 Naloxone kits at $384.00 to Camden County Sheriff. 

Access Point Kiosk – The Kiosk provides anonymous evidence-based self-

conducted screenings for mental health and substance use to potentially link 

individuals to appropriate services. The annual cost is $1181.00 for these kiosk 

per year. 

*Substance Abuse Treatment Services: $ 137,600 was paid for 45 individuals from 

your county to providers for substance abuse treatment. 

These Substance abuse treatment expenditures were spent for the treatment of 

alcoholism or substance abuse. These funds were paid to providers who 

contracted with Trillium to provide substance abuse treatment to consumers with 

an address in your county. Services provided include but are not limited to the 

below:  

 Assessment/evaluation 

 Outpatient treatment and counseling, including face to face and 

telepsychiatry and both individual and group 

 Mobile Crisis 

 Substance Abuse Intensive Outpatient Therapy 

 Facility Based Crisis 

 Opioid Treatment 

 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

B
C

 F
u

n
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

F
Y

 1
8-

19
 C

am
d

en
  (

25
15

 :
 A

B
C

 F
u

n
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

F
Y

 2
01

8-
20

19
)



*Denotes State and ABC funds paid for services for consumers residing in Camden 

County with substance abuse diagnosis. This does NOT include Medicaid funds 

paid for the same. 

 

 

 

 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

B
C

 F
u

n
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

F
Y

 1
8-

19
 C

am
d

en
  (

25
15

 :
 A

B
C

 F
u

n
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

F
Y

 2
01

8-
20

19
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.D 

Meeting Date:   October 07, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection FY 19-20 

 

Attachments: YTD Sales Tax Revenue FY 19-20 (PDF) 

 

11.D

Packet Pg. 206



11.D.a

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Y

T
D

 S
al

es
 T

ax
 R

ev
en

u
e 

F
Y

 1
9-

20
  (

25
20

 :
 Y

T
D

 S
al

es
 T

ax
 R

ev
en

u
e 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 F
Y

 1
9-

20
)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	6:00 PM Closed Session - Economic Development and Personnel
	7:00 PM Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Rev. Kevin Lighty - Samuel Chapel Missionary Baptist Church

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	4. Presentations
	A. 2526 : Broadband Update - Eastern Shore Communications
	Printout: 2526 : Broadband Update - Eastern Shore Communications


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Old Business
	A. 2538 : Ordinance 2019-09-01 - Rezoning Application
	Printout: 2538 : Ordinance 2019-09-01 - Rezoning Application
	a. Staff Report
	b. Supporting Documents
	c. 2019-09-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Eric Wood


	6. New Business
	A. 2527 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	Printout: 2527 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	a. 20190927100643842.pdf

	B. 2517 : Selection of Disaster Debris Removal & Monitoring Contractors
	Printout: 2517 : Selection of Disaster Debris Removal & Monitoring Contractors
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Disaster Debris 2019 (002)
	b. Final Bid Tabulation
	c. Final Monitoring Bid Tabulation

	C. 2516 : MOU Camden County Parks & Recreation and Camden County Schools
	Printout: 2516 : MOU Camden County Parks & Recreation and Camden County Schools
	a. MOU2019 Camden County Parks and Recreation and Camden County Schools

	D. 2510 : Center for Active Adults Trip Policy
	Printout: 2510 : Center for Active Adults Trip Policy
	a. Trip Policy
	b. Traveler's Form

	E. 2525 : Vehicle Use Policy
	Printout: 2525 : Vehicle Use Policy
	a. Vehicle Use Policy_rev0919
	b. Vehicle Mileage Log
	c. Release Form Template

	F. 2528 : Resolution 2019-10-01
	Printout: 2528 : Resolution 2019-10-01
	a. Resolution 2019-10-01 Census Partnership

	G. 2514 : Bank Account Closure
	Printout: 2514 : Bank Account Closure
	a. NC Community Foundation

	H. 2540 : Interim Finance Officer
	Printout: 2540 : Interim Finance Officer


	7. Board Appointments
	A. 2531 : Community Advisory Committee - Reappointment
	Printout: 2531 : Community Advisory Committee - Reappointment

	B. 2530 : ABC Board - Reappointments
	Printout: 2530 : ABC Board - Reappointments


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. 2522 : BOC Meeting Minutes - September 9, 2019
	Printout: 2522 : BOC Meeting Minutes - September 9, 2019
	a. bocminutes_090919

	B. 2534 : BOC Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019
	Printout: 2534 : BOC Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019
	a. bocboeminutes_091619

	C. 2523 : Budget Amendment
	Printout: 2523 : Budget Amendment
	a. Budget Amendment

	D. 2521 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2521 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	E. 2535 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2535 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20191001110742077.pdf

	F. 2505 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2505 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. 20190909105722041.pdf

	G. 2533 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100 - August 2019
	Printout: 2533 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100 - August 2019
	a. Vehicle Refunds

	H. 2536 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - September 2019
	Printout: 2536 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - September 2019
	a. 20191001110733636.pdf

	I. 2537 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 2537 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	J. 2524 : Records Retention and Disposition Schedule
	Printout: 2524 : Records Retention and Disposition Schedule
	a. 2019 Records Retention and Disposition Schedule

	K. 2518 : Surplus Property Request - Human Resources
	Printout: 2518 : Surplus Property Request - Human Resources
	a. Surplus Property - Human Resources

	L. 2509 : Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20
	Printout: 2509 : Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20
	a. Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20

	M. 2511 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-08-02
	Printout: 2511 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-08-02
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-08-02
	b. Reasons for UDO amendments
	c. Ordinance 2019-08-02 Revised after PB 9-18-19

	N. 2512 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-10-01
	Printout: 2512 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-10-01
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-10-01 - Sawyer
	b. Sawyer Rezoning Findings
	c. Supporting Documents


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2539 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2539 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 2529 : Library Report
	Printout: 2529 : Library Report
	a. Library Report

	C. 2515 : ABC Funds Report for FY 2018-2019
	Printout: 2515 : ABC Funds Report for FY 2018-2019
	a. ABC Funds Report for FY 18-19 Camden

	D. 2520 : YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection FY 19-20
	Printout: 2520 : YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection FY 19-20
	a. YTD Sales Tax Revenue FY 19-20


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 2526 : Broadband Update - Eastern Shore Communications
	5.A · 2538 : Ordinance 2019-09-01 - Rezoning Application
	5.A.a · Staff Report
	5.A.b · Supporting Documents
	5.A.c · 2019-09-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Eric Wood

	6.A · 2527 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	6.A.a · 20190927100643842.pdf

	6.B · 2517 : Selection of Disaster Debris Removal & Monitoring Contractors
	6.B.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Disaster Debris 2019 (002)
	6.B.b · Final Bid Tabulation
	6.B.c · Final Monitoring Bid Tabulation

	6.C · 2516 : MOU Camden County Parks & Recreation and Camden County Schools
	6.C.a · MOU2019 Camden County Parks and Recreation and Camden County Schools

	6.D · 2510 : Center for Active Adults Trip Policy
	6.D.a · Trip Policy
	6.D.b · Traveler's Form

	6.E · 2525 : Vehicle Use Policy
	6.E.a · Vehicle Use Policy_rev0919
	6.E.b · Vehicle Mileage Log
	6.E.c · Release Form Template

	6.F · 2528 : Resolution 2019-10-01
	6.F.a · Resolution 2019-10-01 Census Partnership

	6.G · 2514 : Bank Account Closure
	6.G.a · NC Community Foundation

	6.H · 2540 : Interim Finance Officer
	7.A · 2531 : Community Advisory Committee - Reappointment
	7.B · 2530 : ABC Board - Reappointments
	8.A · 2522 : BOC Meeting Minutes - September 9, 2019
	8.A.a · bocminutes_090919

	8.B · 2534 : BOC Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019
	8.B.a · bocboeminutes_091619

	8.C · 2523 : Budget Amendment
	8.C.a · Budget Amendment

	8.D · 2521 : Tax Collection Report
	8.D.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.E · 2535 : Refunds Over $100.00
	8.E.a · 20191001110742077.pdf

	8.F · 2505 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.F.a · 20190909105722041.pdf

	8.G · 2533 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100 - August 2019
	8.G.a · Vehicle Refunds

	8.H · 2536 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - September 2019
	8.H.a · 20191001110733636.pdf

	8.I · 2537 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	8.I.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	8.J · 2524 : Records Retention and Disposition Schedule
	8.J.a · 2019 Records Retention and Disposition Schedule

	8.K · 2518 : Surplus Property Request - Human Resources
	8.K.a · Surplus Property - Human Resources

	8.L · 2509 : Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20
	8.L.a · Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 19-20

	8.M · 2511 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-08-02
	8.M.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-08-02
	8.M.b · Reasons for UDO amendments
	8.M.c · Ordinance 2019-08-02 Revised after PB 9-18-19

	8.N · 2512 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-10-01
	8.N.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-10-01 - Sawyer
	8.N.b · Sawyer Rezoning Findings
	8.N.c · Supporting Documents

	11.A · 2539 : Register of Deeds Report
	11.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	11.B · 2529 : Library Report
	11.B.a · Library Report

	11.C · 2515 : ABC Funds Report for FY 2018-2019
	11.C.a · ABC Funds Report for FY 18-19 Camden

	11.D · 2520 : YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection FY 19-20
	11.D.a · YTD Sales Tax Revenue FY 19-20



